TOWN OF LUDLOW, VT
SELECT BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024
6:00 PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM

Select Board Meeting- April 1, 2024 Zoom Link

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh2l2

AGENDA
1. Call to Order:

2. Annual Board Reorganization:

Elect Chair of the Board

Elect Vice Chair of the Board

Elect Clerk of the Board

Appoint Union Negotiating Team Members

Appoint Ludlow Enterprise Fund Committee Members

Set Day/Time of Regular Meetings & Alt Mtgs (1% Mon/3" Mon)
Appoint Recording Secretary (Lisha Klaiber)

Designate Newspaper of Record (Vt Journal/Rutland Herald)
Adopt Roberts Rules of Order

—SQ@ oo o0 o

3. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda:

4. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s):
a. February 5, 2024 Regular Meeting
b. March 4, 2024 Public Informational Meeting

5. Comments from Citizens:



https://zoom.us/j/96352364337?pwd=N2k1RTIycVMyQXhjbThWcGJwWGJQQT09
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh2l2

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Appoint Non- Elected Town Officers: (see list)

Approve Local Emergency Management Plan (LEMP):

Appoint Vacant Elected Positions:
a. Listers-1 Year Term
b. Trustees of Public Funds — 1 Year Term

Liguor Control Board:
a. Liquor License Renewals

Approve VTrans Financial Plan, Codes, & Standards & Cert of Compliance:
a. Financial Plan
b. Approve Road Codes and Bridge Standards
c. Sign Certification of Compliance for Town Road/Bridge Standards

ARPA Funding Meeting Date:

Review and Consider Approval of Note from M&T Bank:

a. For the Purchase of the Highway Department Grader and Pickup Truck

Use of the Timber Inn Property by Ludlow Fire Department:

Consider Encumbering Highway Paving Funds from Previous Fiscal Year:

Consider Approval of Highway Bids:

a. F-600 Highway Truck Purchase
b. Okemo Access road Paving

Department Head Reports:
a. February 2024
b. March 2024

Municipal Manager Updates:

Other Business:

Possible Items for Next Meeting: (May 6, 2024)

Sign Warrant Orders:

Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues:

Adjourn:



PRELIMINARY MINUTES

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

February 5, 2024
HEALD AUDITORIUM
6:00 P.M.

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799, 963 5236 4337#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860, 963 5236 4337#,,,,*411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh212

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Brett Sanderson, Chairman Bob Brandt George Tucker, Jr.
Scott Baitz Justin Hyjek

STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara Ulla Cook

OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Nick Gilberti Bruce Schmidt
Lynn Baldwin Glenn Heitsmith Noah Schmidt
Terry Carter Sandy Johnson Marissa Selleck
Donna Dwyer Joe Josselyn George Thomson
Frank Dwyer Angelica Lopez Sherry Tucker
Joe Dwyer

1. Call to order

A. Brett Sanderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. All members present. He led the meeting in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Consideration of anyv Changes. Additions or Removals to the Agenda

A. There were none.



Board of Selectmen February 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6

3. Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting

A. Brett Sanderson advised that the minutes are from the meeting on January 8, 2024 and the Joint Board
meeting on January 24, 2024.

B. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to accept the minutes from January 8,
2024 and the Joint Board meeting on January 24, 2024 as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

4. Comments from Citizens

A. Bruce Schmidt
1. Encouraged the board to have a moment of silence to remember Howard Barton, Sr. and Herbert Van
Guilder. Both men passed away recently.
2. Brett Sanderson said that they had done a lot for the town and asked for a moment of silence.

5. Annual Town Meeting Update

A. Brendan McNamara advised that Town Meeting will be held on Monday, March 4, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. and
voting will take place on Tuesday, March 5, 2024 between 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. He thanked the board
and Departments heads for all of their work on what he said is a prudent budget. He said that the proposed
budget will be on the website and invited anyone with any questions to call him.

6. Review and Approve Annual Liquor License Applications

A. Brendan McNamara advised that the board will vote on the businesses owned by Justin Hyjek first.
B. Justin Hyjek recused himself from the vote

Applicant License Class
Homestyle Hotel First, Outside, Third,
Homestyle Hostel Outside, Third, First

C. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve the licenses indicated above.

Motion passed unanimously.
D. Brendan McNamara read the list of the remaining properties.

Applicant License Class

Proud Bear LLC First, Outside

KMS, Inc. First,

Off The Rails Third, First, Outside, Second, Tobacco
Fox Run Golf Club Tobacco

Aminah & Rayhan, LLC Second, Tobacco

Calcutta’s LLC Outside, Tobacco, First, Third

Beer Mountain LLC Second

Applegreen Group Tobacco, Second, Tobacco Substitute endorsement



Board of Selectmen February 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6

E.

Goodman’s American Pie Outside, First Class
Brewfest Beverages Company  Tobacco, Second

MOTION by Justin Hviek and seconded by Scott Baitz to approve the liquor licenses based on the
recommendation of the Police Chief. Motion passed unanimously.

7. Pedestrian Bridge — Mill Street

A.

Brendan McNamara advised that replacement of the bridge at Mill Street has been approved by the State. It
will be removed and replaced with a truss pedestrian foot bridge. The state has hired a Rutland company to
do the removal, but has not hired a company to put the new bridge in. He advised that once construction has
begun, that portion of Pleasant Street Extension will be closed. It will be open on either side of the bridge.
He said that he has requested that the closure happened after Easter. He has also requested that the have an
onsite PIO (Public Information Officer) to be able to answer questions. He said there will be public
meetings. He added that this is 100% funded by the state and they hope to have this completed by the fall.
Glenn Heitsmith motioned from the floor that the bridge be named for Ralph Pace who was the first one to
find the bridge to be unsafe.

Brendan McNamara said that the flood in July made the bridge more treacherous.

8. Planning Commission Rules of Procedure (Review/Action)

Brendan McNamara advised that the board has copies of the draft. They will not be voting on it tonight.
Terry Carter advised that the board does not need to vote on the document. She said the board is making 2
changes: 1) in the past, the Select Board appointed an alternate member to the board. VLCT has advised that
the Select Board cannot appoint an alternate to the Planning Commission. They can vote to increase the
number of members. 2) the board voted to require that a majority of the members shall be residents of
Ludlow. She noted that Ted Stryhas is a member of the board and has a lot of information and knowledge.
Fric Alden said that the wording violates State Statue. There is nothing in statute prohibiting others from
being on the Planning Commission and they are doing the town a disservice by narrowing the commission to
strictly residents of the town. There may be others with a lot of experience and knowledge.

Brendan McNamara said he will check statute, but he thinks that the Planning Commission has to have a
majority from Ludlow, but can have members from other communities. He will get the proper wording.

9. Review and Possible Appoint Jean Strong — Council on Aging Representative

A. Brendan McNamara advised that Jean Strong has submitted a letter of interest in becoming the representative

to the Council on Aging. She has a lot of experience through her work with the Senior Center.

B. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to appoint Jean Strong as Council on

Aging Representative. Motion passed unanimously.



Board of Selectmen February 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6

10. Sons of the American Legion Annual Coin Drop Approval

11.

A.

Brendan McNamara advised that group has requested either Saturday, April 20™ or Saturday, April 27, 2024.
This is a fund-raising event for Children’s Miracle Network.

MOTION by Scott Baitz and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to approve the request from the Sons of
the American Legion for a coin drop.

Justin Hyjek asked why they listed 2 dates and he would prefer to have a secure date.

Brendan McNamara said he will reach out to them and secure the date, possibly the 20™ with the 27% as a rain
date.

Motion passed unanimously.

FEMA Buvout Discussion — 6 Mill Street. (Windsor County Youth Services)

A.

t

Brendan McNamara said that they received a letter from Jackie Hanlon, Executive Director of Windsor
County Youth Services (WCYS) for a FEMA buyout approval for 6 Mill Street. The house was severely
impacted by flooding. This is the first step in the buyout process.

Justin Hyjek asked if the house is open now.

George Thomson said that the house on Mill Street is closed. The group has a second location in
Proctorsville. The Mill Street house has been flooded twice and had to be evacuated. The children that
have stayed at the house are children who can’t live at their homes. The goal is to get them back home
through counseling, social work and education. All of the children are now at the Proctorsville house and
they are limited to 5 children. There is also a state recognized tutorial program. We can’t put children back
at the Mill Street house. He said that if they get the FEMA buyout, they will be looking for another location.
MOTION by George Tucker. Jr. and seconded by Bob Brandt to move forward with the FEMA
buyout process.

Glenn Heitsmith suggested that the former high school building might make a good location.

Motion passed unanimously.

12. Other Business

A.

B.

18 Mill Street

1.  Donna Dwyer asked if the board would be voting on the FEMA buyout for her property tonight. She
was told that they would be.

2.  Brendan McNamara said it is not on the agenda and the board may not vote. He suggested a possible
special meeting

Bob Brandt

1.  Bruce Schmidt advised that this will be Bob Brandt’s last meeting and he wants to thank Bob for
serving the community. He said that Bob really cares about the town.

13. Department Head Reports

A.

Reports are in. No comments



Board of Selectmen February 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6

14. Municipal Manager Updates

A. Highway Backhoe
1.  Brendan McNamara said the backhoe is not in good shape and estimated repairs may run between
$40,000 and $44,000. He said that he has asked Ron Tarbell to look into pricing from dealers on a
new one — estimated to be about $165,000 to $180,000. They are also looking a leasing. They need
to look into this within the month. The backhoe is used by the Highway, Water/Wastewater and
Transfer Station departments. It is a vital piece of equipment.
2. Justin Hyjek asked how old the unit is.
3. Brendan Mc¢Namara said it is a 2015 and this is sooner than expected.
B. Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
1.  Brendan McNamara advised that he and David Van Guider have been working with Regional
Planning Commission to update the plan — it must be updated every 5 years. The Regional Planning
Commission received a BRIC grant and Ludlow will have a share. The more people who attend the
meetings from Ludlow affects our share. There will be a public meeting the last Wednesday in
February in the conference room downstairs - for gathering
. information.
C. Joe Guadiana
1. Brendan McNamara advised that Joe Guadiana has been named Regional Water/Wastewater
Operator of the Year 2023. There will be a plaque in the office. Brendan McNamara said that Joe
Guadiana played a huge part in keeping the plant operational after the last flood.
CONGRATULATIONS TO JOE!
D. ARPA Funds
1. Brendan McNamara suggested the board set a date for a special meeting to consider uses for the
ARPA funds — possibly the 2™ or 3™ week in March. He said there is about $500,000 to $600,000.

E. ONSOLVE Code Red Alert System
1. Brendan McNamara said that he and Dave Van Guilder have been meeting with the people from
ONSOLVE one to two times per week. They have sent out test alerts. He said they expect to launch
the system in 2 to 3 weeks. This will be publicized. He said this will be a subscription program, but
in case of an emergency, they will be able to circle in on specific areas and get contact information.
He said they did a test on the Hemingway Hill area and located about 22 phone numbers.

15. Set Date for Next Meeting (March 4, 2024)

A. Town Meeting will be March 4, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.
B. Voting will be Tuesday, March 5, 2024 from 10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.

16. Sign Warrant Orders

A.  Brendan MeNamara noted that Warrant Orders have been signed.



Board of Selectmen February 5, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6

17. Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues

A. Brendan McNamara said that an Executive Session is needed for Personnel matters.

B. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded Scott Baitz to enter into Executive Session for
Personnel matters. Motion passed unanimously.

Board entered into Executive Session at 6:35 p.m.

MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to exit Executive Session.
Board exited Executive Session at 7:00 p.m. No action taken.

Moo

18. Adjourn

A. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Justin Hyjek to adjourn. Motion passed
unanimously.
B.  Meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek

Scott Baitz George Tucker, Jr.

Bob Brandt



PRELIMINARY MINUTES

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING
&
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
March 4, 2023 and March 5, 2023

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek
Scott Baitz George Tucker, Jr.

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:
Bob Brandt

STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara Ulla Cook Newton Rose, Moderator

OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Joe Josselyn Frank Provance
Dean Alexander Jay Jurkoic Pat Pullinen
Linda Alexander Abigail Karner Richard Radonis
Robin Anderson Rachel Karner Thomas Ray
Evelyn Baldwin Edward Kelly Paul Rix
Lynette Bard Heather Kelly Susan Rohdieck
George Benson, Jr. Angela Kissell James Rumrill
Kaitlyn Benson Frank Kissell Sherry Scales
Lynette Bard Peter Kolenda Carmen Schleider
Jeff Billings Craig Kovalsky Bruce Schmidt
Ron Bixby Elizabeth Krefski Lisa Schmidt
Sharon Bixby Louis Krefski Noah Schmidt
Gary Blodgett David Ladd Marissa Selleck
Marilee Blodgett Donald Lagro Ginny Snyder
Joanna Bombadil Mary Mancino Debra Staniscia
Michelle Brandt Jeffrey Mazurek Michelle Stinson
James Briggs Steve Meyers Jean Strong
Dan Buckley Cynthia Mischel George Thomson
Suzy Buckley Patrick Moore Linda Thomson
Alan Couch Otis Nelson Penny Trick
John Denner Julie Nicoll Deborah Tucker
Robert Fortuna Logan Nicoll George Tucker
Terry Fortuna Alice Nitka Heather Tucker
Aaron Galley Pam O’Neil Jerry Tucker, Jr.
Peter Girouard Rhinard Parry Jerry Tucker
Patricia Greenwood Melissa Phipps Sheree Vaughn-Tucker
Stephanie Grover Paula Pollender Jeff Warfle
Glenn Heitsmith Peter Pollender Vincent West
Mary Hoyne Rebecca Prasse Timothy Wingate

Madeline Young



TOWN OF LUDLOW March 4, 2024
PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING Page 2 of 7
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.

m O

Newton Rose called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. He asked for a moment of silence in
honor of three members of the community who had passed in the last year, Howard Barton Sr.
(Ludlow Electric Superintendent from 1975 to 2022,) Martin Nitka (Town Attorney Town
Moderator, Select Board and Cemetery Commission) and Herb Van Guilder (Select Board,
Village Trustee, Town Moderator and Cemetery Commission.) He then introduced Tom Ray
and Jim Rumrill from the Rotary.

Tom Ray said that he is the new president of the Rotary and he and Jim Rumrill are here
tonight to honor Martin Nitka.

Jim Rumrill said that Mr. Nitka was instrumental in organizing the Ludlow Chapter of
the Rotary, the first Penny Auction and mentor. He served as Ludlow Town Moderator
and in that capacity allowed people to speak until they were able to get their point
across without interfering and for his years of service to the Rotary and Town. The
Rotary is donating a new podium for the Town Hall with a plaque honoring Marty
Nitka.

Alice Nitka read the plaque on the new podium and thanked the Rotary.

Newton Rose said that this meeting will adhere to Roberts Rules of Order and is modeled by
State statute. He said this meeting is to discuss and vote on the articles. He said that he will
read the article and there will be a motion to approve and second, then there will be discussion
on the motion. He asked those who wish to speak to come to the microphone and give their
names. The voters will vote to accept or no. He said that once an article has been voted on, you
can’t go back to it. Voting will be by voice, aye or nay. He will call the vote as he hears it. He
explained that they are here to vote on the articles and that, if an item was not warned, there will
be no binding vote on that issue. There may be discussions of those issues under OTHER
BUSINESS. In order to participate, you must be a registered voter of Ludlow. He said that
Brendan McNamara and Stephanie Grover are present to speak for the Town and Ambulance
Service.

2. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 1 — To Elect Town Officers for the coming year

A.

Newton Rose said that that voting for this article will be by Australian ballot tomorrow,
Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at Town Hall from 10:00 a.m. through 7:00 p.m.

3. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 2 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow fix the salaries of the

Select Board, Cemetery Commissioners and Trustees of Public Funds the same as last year, Select

Board 31,600, Cemetery Commissioners $900, Trustee of Public Funds $400?

A.

B.
C.

MOTION by Linda Thomson and seconded by Terry Carter to adopt Article 2 to fix the
salaries as described above.

Newton Rose called for a vote. He noted that the ayes have it.

Article 2 is adopted.




TOWN OF LUDLOW March 4, 2024
PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING Page 3 of 7
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

4. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 3 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow collect taxes on Real
Property in installments to be paid to the Town Treasurer on August 15, 2024, November 15, 2024,
February 15, 2025 and May 15, 2025, and must be delivered to the Town Treasurer and postmarked
on_or before the due date.

A. MOTION by Joanna Bombadil and seconded by Dan Buckley to adopt Article 3.
B. Newton Rose called for a vote. He noted that the ayes have it.
C. Article 3 is adopted.

5. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 4 — Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow authorize the Select
Board to borrow money to pay the necessary expenses of the Town and any part of its indebtedness?

A MOTION by Pam O’Neil and seconded by Sharon Bixby to adopt Article 4 to authorize
the Select Board to borrow money to pav the necessary expenses of the Town and any part
of its indebtedness.

B. There was no discussion

C. Newton Rose called for the vote. He noted that the ayes have it.

D Article 4 is adopted.

REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 5 — Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow vote a specific
amount in lieu of a rate on_a dollar on the Grand List as set forth in the Select Board’s budget and
the Windsor County budget? Then the Select Board shall set the tax rate necessary to raise this
amount after the Grand List has been completed and lodged in the office of the Town Clerk. The
amount to be raised by taxes will be $4,684,819.00

A. MOTION by Dan Buckley and seconded by Pam O’Neil to adopt article 5.

B. Brendan McNamara made a note for clarification. He said that the budget starts on page 15 of
the town report and there was a printing error on the preface page. The correct numbers should
be $6,843,392 and $2,158,573. He said that the error does not affect the budget. He said that he
should have caught the error and apologized.

C. Lou Krefski asked about the increase on page 28 — line #1 regarding the Chief Deputy from
$13,800 to $95,000.

D. Brendan McNamara said that the board is advocating for a full time chief. He said that after 25
years, Chief Kolenda will be retiring on June 30, 2024. The board has had multiple discussions
on this and feels that it is the best option for Ludlow.

E. Joanna Bombadil noted that on page 21 under Appropriations, there is a line for $10,000 for
BRACC, but no corresponding report.

F. Pam O’Neil said that she is the former president of BRACC and explained that BRACC services
students from Ludlow who go to Green Mountain High School. They have an Open Coffee Day
for outreach. She said that there have been conversations with Divided Sky for programs for
youths and adults from Ludlow.

G. Rhinard Perry noted that the budget for the High School Building has expenses listed as $97,000
and revenue as $90,000. He said that when the town took back the building, there was talk that
after 5 years, they would decide what to do with the building — keep or sell.

H. Brendan McNamara said that they extended the lease for the Expeditionary School for one year.
He added that the decision about the building was delayed because of the change in Town




TOWN OF LUDLOW March 4, 2024
PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING Page 4 of 7
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

=

ZgOR

nEOTO

Managers and the flood. This is a discussion not just for the Select Board, but for the entire
community and we will be looking at this aggressively within the next few months.

Pat Pullinen said that the Expeditionary School wants to stay there. State approval was not
received until late June 2023. We are now recruiting students for next year, Our goal is to
become a community school serving Ludlow and Mount Holly.

John Denner asked why the town doesn’t move the Elementary School into the High School
building.

Newton Rose said this discussion is about Article 5.

Glenn Heitsmith asked if he would be allowed to make an amendment to the article.

Newton Rose said if it is germane to the article.

Glenn Heitsmith proposed an amendment rather than to give the money to BRACC, give it to
Divided Sky to address the national, state and local issue of opiate addiction and asked about
NARCAN. The town should keep its eyes open about the opiate problem. He noted that there
is no one present from BRACC tonight.

Pam O’Neil said that she spoke for BRACC.

Newton Rose said that the amendment is not germane to the article.

There was no further discussion.

Newton Rose called for a vote and noted that the ayes have it.

Article 5 is adopted.

REVIEW AND DISCUSS ARTICLE 6 - Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow authorize the

Select Board to maintain a Capital Fund to support the following vehicle and equipment purchases,

building maintenance and repairs and to fund programs?

Mo 0 W

Highway Equipment Fund 330,000

Fire Equipment Fund $30,000

Police Equipment Fund $5,000,

Recreation Facilities Fund 310,000,

Ludlow Town Hall Facilities Fund 310,000,
Ludlow Community Center Facilities Fund 35,000,
Black River Senior Center Facilities Fund 32,500
Black River High School Building Fund $5,000
Dam Spillway Fund $125,000?

The amount to be raised by taxes will be $222,500.00.

MOTION by Sharon Bixbv and seconded by Terrv Carter to adopt Article 6.

Peter Girouard_asked if the town buys a new piece of equipment, does the town pay or take a
loan or bond.

Brett Sanderson said that it depends on the article. The money put in capital will go toward the
purchase.

Peter Girouard asked about the Dam Spillway.

Brendan McNamara said there was damage to Dams #3 and #5 and their spillways. He has been
working with the USDA Emergency Watershed Program and financing for repairs would be
75% with a 25% town match. He said that would be the $125,000. He added that as of last
week, he thinks there is a possibility we may even get 100% financing. He said that until all of
this is verified, we need to leave that money in the budget.




TOWN OF LUDLOW March 4, 2024
PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING Page 5 of 7
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

Z -

REmE o

Glenn Heitsmith said that the dams were damaged during Irene and again this summer. He said
they were built by the Army Corps of Engineers and asked why they aren’t responsible to fix
them. He added that they have not been maintained.

Rhinard Perry asked about the $5,000 to the High School when there is already $90,000 in the
budget.

Brendan McNamara said that the Capital Fund is for long term projects.

Rhinard Perry asked what if the school is sold.

Brendan McNamara said the funds would still go toward the building.

Pat Pullinen said the Expeditionary School wants to stay. This money is for long term expenses.
He noted that there was an ice dam on the roof that leaked into the building. With the school
being present, this damage was caught right away and repaired.

Newton Rose called for a vote on Article 6. The ayes have it.

Article 6 is adopted.

8. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 7 — Shall the voters of the Town of Ludlow appropriate the sum

of $7.250.00 to The MOOvers, formerly The Current, to support the public transit bus service to

Ludlow, from Bellows Falls and from Rutland?

A.

B.

mY 0

MOTION by Tracey Leary and seconded by Suzy Buckley to adopt Article 7.

Glenn Heitsmith commented that it is a great service. He asked what Okemo pays towards the
service.

Bruce Schmidt said that Okemo pays $35,000 for the service from Bellows Falls to Springfield
to Okemo and another $10,000 to $12,000 for the area and Village Shuttle.

Newton Rose called for a vote and the ayes have it.

Article 7 is adopted.

9. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 8 - SHALL the voters of the Town of Ludlow exempt the lands
and improvements of Fletcher Farm Foundation from real estate taxes for a period of five (5) years:
commencing with the 2024 - 2025 tax year?

Qwp

ommo

MOTION by Linda Thomson and seconded by Cynthia Mischel to adopt Article 8.
Newton Rose called for questions or comments.

George Thomson said that he is the president of the Fletcher Farm Foundation. He said the
foundation was formed in 1933 for the benefit of the people of Ludlow and Cavendish. There is
money to maintain the buildings and grounds. He said that 105 acres of the property was in
Ludlow and 150 acres are in Cavendish. He said the foundation donates $10,000 each to both
the Fletcher Library in Ludlow and also in Cavendish. They provide scholarships for Ludlow
and Cavendish students for courses at the Arts and Crafts school. The property serves Stepping
Stones, TRSU, HCRS and Black River Good Neighbors. Part of the land is used for the
Community Garden as well as the Fletcher Fields for sports, the Dog Park and hiking and sports
trails. They contributed money after the floods.

Donald Lagro asked about the mine.

George Thomson said the foundation no longer owns that part of the property.

Newton Rose called for a vote. He noted that the ayes have it.

Article 8 is adopted.



TOWN OF LUDLOW March 4, 2024
PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING Page 6 of 7
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

10. REPORT FROM STATE CONGRESSMAN LOGAN NICOLL

Newton Rose said that at this time, we will hear a report from State Congressman Logan Nicoll.
Logan Nicoll said that he is on the House Committee on Commerce and Economic
Development and his priority has been a bill on data privacy regarding more regulation
of harvesting and selling data. He said that other bills that are in process are Housing,
Educational Finance and Act 250. He noted that people are anxious about Educational
Funding. He said that the state did have federal money that artificially deflated property
taxes. We no longer have those funds. He said that the legislature did pass a budget
adjustment act to true up the current budget. He added that Ludlow will receive
$1,000,000 in flood relief funds.

11. REVIEW & DISCUSS ARTICLE 9 — 7o transact any other business necessary and proper when

met. Voters to discuss whether to consider allowing optional delivery methods of the Annual Town

Report

A.

Newton Rose advised that no motion is required.

12, OTHER COMMENTS

A.  Brendan McNamara recognized Bob Brandt for his service on the Select Board and thanked him
for his time on the board.

B.  Brendan McNamara recognized Chief Peter Kolenda who will be retiring from his position as
Fire Chief as of June 30, 2024. Chief Kolenda has served for 25 years. Thank you Chief
Kolenda.

C.  Brendan McNamara offered his thanks to the Select Board, Staff and Community. Next month
will be his one- year anniversary as Town Manager of Ludlow.

D.  Carmen Schleider said that she represents Divided Sky. They opened November 13, 2023 and
will be holding a Fun Run at Jackson Gore on May 18, 2024. She invited people to participate.

E. John Denner said that the school bond is $10,000,000 with $5,000,000 for the elementary
school. Why not move the elementary school students into the high school building.

F. Lisa Schmidt said that would be a School Board issue.

G. Brendan McNamara said that may be part of the discussion when the Select Board begins
discussions on the future of the high school building.

H. Dean Alexander asked if there are any representatives here tonight from the school board and if
not, that is poor.

13. ADJOURN
A. MOTION by Sharon Bixby and seconded by Don Lagro to adjourn.
B. Newton Rose adjourned the meeting at 7:58 p.m.



TOWN OF LUDLOW
PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

March 4, 2024
Page 7 of 7

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

Brett Sanderson, Chairman

Scott Baitz

Bob Brandt

Ulla Cook, Town Clerk

Newton Rose, Town Moderator

Justin Hyjek

George Tucker,?r.

Jean Strong, BCA Chair



TOWN OF LUDLOW, VERMONT
POSITIONS AVAILABLE

The Select Board of the Town of Ludlow, Vermont invites letters of interest for the following available
positions for 2024/2025:

One-year Term Positions Available:
e Black River Valley Senior Center Representative — Letter of Interest Attached
Council on Aging-Senior Solutions Advisory Board Representative — Letter of Interest Attached
Development Review Board (DRB) — Letter of Interest Attached
Emergency Management Director — Letter of Interest Attached
Emergency Management Assistant
Fence Viewers- (3) positions — (1) Letter of Interest Attached
Mount Ascutney Regional Planning Commission Representative — Letter of Interest Attached
Mount Ascutney Regional Planning Commission Alternate — Letter of Interest Attached
Pound Keeper
Recreation Committee — (3) positions
Southern Windsor County Transportation Advisory Representative
Southern Windsor County Transportation Advisory Alternate
Southern Windsor/Windham Counties Solid Waste Mgmt. District Representative
Southern Windsor/Windham Counties Solid Waste Mgmt. District Alternate
Surveyor of Wood & Lumber
Town Health Officer — Deputy
Tree Warden - — Letter of Interest Attached
Tree Warden - Deputy
Weigher of Coal — Letter of Interest Attached

Three-year Term Positions Available:
e Recreation Committee — Letter of Interest Attached

Four -ye;u' Term Positions Available:
e Planning Commission — (1) Position — Letter of Interest Attached

Five-year Term Position Available:
e None

Anyone interested in filling one or more available positions should submit a letter of interest no later than
March 22, 2024 to the Ludlow Municipal Office. For your convenience, you may email your letter to:
townhall(@tds.net and village@tds.net or send your letter to:  Town of Ludlow Appointments

P.O. Box 359

Ludlow, VT 05149

Appointments will be chosen by the Ludlow Select Board at their regular meeting scheduled for April 1, 2024
at 6:00 PM.



March 8, 2024

Ludlow Town Select Board
Depot Street
Ludlow, VT 05149

Please consider this letter as a request to be appointed or reappointed to the following
positions for the Town of Ludlow.

Black River Valley Senior Center Representative
Senior Solutions — Council on Aging
I had a great deal of admiration and respect for Herb VanGuilder and would be honored to be

appointed to any positions left unfilled by his passing.

Jean S. Strong

7 Parker Ave
Ludlow, VT 05149
802-779-7132



Alan 1. Couch
21 Meadow Street
Ludlow, VT 05149
802-228-2499

March 18, 2024

Town of Ludlow Appointments

P.O. Box 359

Ludlow, VT 05149

Members of the Select Board, and Town-Manager, 6;/:@(/10/& “

I would like to be considered for re-appointment to the open position on the
Development Review Board.

I was appointed to a one year position at the April 3, 2023 Select Board Meeting.
My seat is currently the only position up for reappointment this year.

I was a member of the Ludlow Planning Commission for thirteen years, ending in
2022. During my tenure, the Planning Commission enacted and amended many

zoning rules and regulations to promote sustainable development in the village and
town.

If re-appointed to the DRB, I will continue to offer first hand insight on the thought
process behind the enactment of previous zoning changes. My experience on the
DRB for the last year has given me valuable insight in the process involved in
sustainable development of Ludlow.

It would be my honor and privilege to sit on the DRB for another 3 years.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Alan I. Couch



Mauceh 4, 2024

//; b Lunbew Se lect howrd

éf(\%w <« N :

b A F+hisg (~e+4~=er' T A fuBmmHnnj MY némee
Qﬁ a Seat onN \.—//)s-c D“\*ﬂlopnrwnﬁ- \?‘GVNU RMr&Q.

QL’{avmﬁ Seprven o0 \4/1\\3 ’6C>er‘d( 'tC;Jf a num bbe/-

'& yenrs T el her I Shi) hewe mueh Yo

Om(_, 2 UnD'(fS%'&v\L \}/t\{ GOMW\)")_N\-QJ'\'J’ anp
MSPons b hdreg e e DPR MGy e S,

AL oove alsp e o 5%7 on &g A
—7/}\*@(, Wtie geso «,C;r \-7’4\{ %UJU

%anK- \/au So Your Lon Siv<r a o

i

fse ot
TFZUL df\}'(&

'BLAN!&ﬁg i‘! Pﬂh?ﬁy DEPT.

MAR 11 2024

|_YRLOW vERmonT
%\J




Diane Knight

From: Angela Kissell <ludlowemergencymanagement@yahoo.com>
Sent: Saturday, February 10, 2024 9:31 AM

To: Diane Knight; Brendan McNamara

Subject: EMD

Morning,

Unless you need a letter, please accept this email as my interest to be re-appointed as EMD for the
Town of Ludiow.

Thank you,

Angela

Al E A Gty W\uw&” Dihacin



March 9, 2024
Theresa Gurdak-Carter

To the Ludlow Selectboard,

Please consider my re-appointment to MARC (Mount Ascutney Regional
Commission) as our town’s representative. [ attend these monthly meetings to keep
Ludlow informed of possible opportunities for our town. At the last meeting I
learned about a resource person that can develop a web page for our town to
facilitate the building of affordable housing. This monthly information has assisted
my work on Ludlow’s Planning Commission in many ways. For example, [ learn of
impending legislation that will directly affect housing/zoning in our town.

Attending these monthly meetings also connects us to representatives from
the other towns in our region.. We can confer on whether it is a good idea for
Ludlow to take advantage of state incentives for grants to develop “Neighborhood
Development Areas” or if Ludlow should consider the “Downtown” designation that
Windsor (Tom Marsh) and Springfield (Walter Martone) have taken advantage of in
their towns.

I also serve on the committee that works on MARC'’s Regional Plan. If you see
fit to re-appoint me, thank you for this opportunity to continue to serve our town in
this capacity.

Terry Carter

1821 South Hill

Ludlow, Vt. 05149
802-228-7445 (228-PHIL)
802-558-6209 (cell)
tmgcarter@gmail.com

RECEIVED BY
PLANNING & ZONING DEPT,

MAR 112024




March 11, 2024

Rosemary Goings

Director of Planning and Zoning
Zoning Administrator

To the Board of Selectboard:

For many years | have served the Town of Ludlow in multiply positions, and have enjoyed all of them.
This year | am applying to be the positions of:

e Mount Ascutney Regional Commission, as the Alternate

o Fence Viewer

I have served in both of these positions for many years, only taking a year off from Fence Viewing due to
injury.

Thank you for your consideration.

Rosemary Goings
@mm ’
¥ L



March 5, 2024

Dear Select Board Members,

[ am submitting this letter of interest to remain as the Weigher of Coal for the
ensuing 2024 /25 term.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely, / L
A st

Loran Greenslet



March 20, 2024
Brendan McNamara
Municipal Manager, Town of Ludlow

Ludlow, Vermont 05149

Good afternoon, Brendan,

Please accept this memo as my request to continue as a Member of the Town of Ludlow Parks
and Recreation Committee.

| have enjoyed being involved in the Committee’s planning and implementation for sports and

Holiday monthly activities/events for the School Children and Adult Programs. | would like very
much to continue working with Nick and the Committee in providing the Recreational Services
to the Ludlow Community.

Sincerely,

Yook Al

Joseph Gurdak =

58 MacGinnis Drive
Ludlow, Vermont 05149
1 (802)228-5533



Patrick Gray

11 Route 100 South
Ludlow, VT 05149.

P.O. Box 155
Cavendish, VT 05142
802-256-4703
Patgray84@yahoo.com

3/19/2024

Brendan McNamara
Town Manager
Town of Ludlow

37 s Depot St,
Ludlow, VT 05149

Dear Brendan McNamara,

My name is Patrick Gray, and | am interested in being on the Ludlow Recreation
Committee. | am seeking a one-year term on the committee. | have over thirty years of
experience in youth recreation as an official as well as a coach which will allow me to
help support the recreation director for tournaments and games throughout the year. My
experience as an official and coach has enhanced my communication and people skills
which will be a huge asset to the community.

My other interests are planning and executing various community events that would be
fun and unique for the community. These events will utilize our existing recreation
facilities and exhibit the need to invest into them. Through these events we can work to
improve the revenue that the programs generate through facility rentals or even the
concession stand. This revenue can then be invested back into the programs to meet
the needs of the consumers. Finally, | would like to continue the promotion of the
Community Center Fitness room as an avenue to improve the quality of life for the
community as well as encouraging everyone to be active.

Thank you for your consideration, and | hope to hear from you soon.

Sincerely,




RECEIVED

March 15, 2024
Ludlow Select Board & MUNICIPAL OFFICE
Village Trustees

Planning Commission Appointment

To whom it may concern,

| am writing this letter to ask to remain on the Planning Commission. | feel that my previous
term was productive and | would like continue working with the Commission to further the betterment
of the Town and Village of Ludlow. My experience brings a unique perspective to the board and | believe
that | can continue to help Ludlow grow and prosper.

Please consider me for appointment to the Planning Commission for the available term.

Respectfully submitted,

Ryan Silvestri

Py




Municipality: Town of Ludlow Date Updated: January 1, 2024
Local Emergency Management Plan

1. Emergency Management (EM) planners

B These are the people who wrote and/or maintain this plan.

Brendan McNamara
Angela Klssell
Jeffrey Billings

2. Municipal Emergency Operations Center (EOC)

| Ron Tarbell
| Peter Kolenda
l David VanGuilder

The EOC is an organization that coordinates information, support, and response across the
municipality for Incident Commanders and town officials. Its main functions are to maintain situational
awareness for municipal leaders, coordinate resource and information requests, and provide public

_information.

by position, can activate the EOC? | As listed below

BHF. s/ Preterred EOC Positions and Dutiesty % o & =

EOC Director
Angela Kissell

Supervises and directs all EOC activities coordlnatmg
municipal support and response

David VanGuilder

| Staffs dispatch center and radio

Dawd VanGu1Ider
Angela Kissell
Brendan McNamara
Jeffrey Billings _
~Stephanie ( Grover
Brett Sanderson

_Tracks and answers any Requests for Informatlon (RFI)

Tracks and coordinates any Requests for Supgort (RFS) |

" Produces and posts public information and press releases -
| Ludlow Police Department ‘
' | Ludlow jlow Ambulance Services

| Ludlow Electric (power outages & downed lines)

Potential EOC Staff Members e

Name | Notes / Contact Information -
'Ronald Tarbell Highway Foreman ) B -

Jeffrey Billings  Chief of Police B - o
Peter Kolenda ' Fire Chief

Stephanie Grover
' Joe Gaudiana
' Kevin MacPherson

T Chief Operator, Village Water & Wastewater

Chief, Ludlow Ambulance ance Service

Building & Grounds Foreman

Eric Alden Health Officer - -
Fac llty /Address:_ Publlc Safety Busldlng 19 West Hill B B

[ Phone Numbers:
Equnpment/Notes:

_ Ambulance & Highway Departments

802 -228-4411
Generator shelter, communications hub, radios, Police,

AHernate EOC Location

Facmty / Address:

Ludlow Town Hall — 37 Depot Street

Phone Numbers:
Equipment/Notes:

1 802-228-2841
| Generator, warming shelter B




3. Resources
Use municipal resources, mutual aid agreements, and local purchases first to

get resources for response as needed and available.

All Emergency

' Purchasing agents for emergencies: |

| Emergency spending limits:

. Staff

None (emergency clause in

Purchasing Policy)

| _ Businesses with Standing Municipal Contracts

. Type of Contract
Aubuchon Hardware -

_LaValleys Building Supply
' Sunoco/Sandri

| Tom Rodrigue -

Name

Contact Info

' Lisa Thomas

. Tena Mowrey

Irvmg Oil (diesel fuel)
Irving Oil (#2 fuel)

_ Tara Frost

Tara Frost

802-228-7900
802-228-4665

802-380-7075

' 888-310-1924

| 888-310-1924

Okemo Mountain/Vail Resorts —
General support & equipment

' Ebb Kinney

' Suburban Propan _(propane) Michael Morabito 802—442—2745
Tg e, i Other EOCAlReSoUmEes 4’ At | A00r
Type of Resources/Skrlls | Name Contact Info
Shaw’s Supermarket — | Amanda Cherrier ' 802-223-8468
Food/Beverage

| .
| 802-228-4041 or

802-228-1658

Ludlow Health Center Medical-NP

i Patricia Brown

Rite-Aid Pharmacy — Medical

| Nancy Carle

| 802-228-8867

802-228-8477

802-228-2500

Ludlow Pharmacy — Medical Jane Rebhan

' M&M Excavating — Construction | Mike O'Neil ' 802-845-3319
' Gurney Brothers — Construction  Dan | Dan Gurney | 802-886-2210
' George B. Tucker — Construction | George Tucker | 802-228-7825

Black River Good Neighbor Krey Kellington 802-228-3663

' Services — Community Outreach
| SEVCA (Vulnerability List)

| 802-722-4575

State support that is usually at no cost to the municipality:
- Vermont Hazardous Material (HAZMAT) Response Team (VHMRT)
»  Vermont Urban Search and Rescue (USAR, VT-TF1)
= Vermont State Police and Special Teams
Community Emergency Response Teams (CERTS)
« Swiftwater Rescue Teams
»  Regional Shelter Support
= State government agency expertise / services
« Federal response agency expertise
State support the municipality will normally eventually have to pay for:
Supplies and equipment (including sandbags)
« VTrans Equipment and Personne!
. Vermont Nationa! Guard Support
“The State Emergency Operations Center (SEOC, 800-347-0488) will help coordinate any state support |
teams or other external resources that local responders may need.

2



bn ical Inci eﬁt Sireéé 4Ma‘ﬁag'e‘mvént ‘ i NI A HYdfaul cavatorLargeMa;s

Team | _|Excavation | L i
Mobile Communications Center Hydraulic Excavator, Medium Mass 1

| E e — | - Excavation o = e |

Mobile Communications Unit N/A NA Hydraulic Excavator, Compact 1 '
|AII-Terrain Vehicles NIA |NIA | NIA | N/A 1 |Road Sweeper 1 '

| ! T 4 &
: i | {

Marine Vessels [N/A | /A N/A NIA Snow Blower, Loader Mounted 1
Snowmobile N/A | N/A NIA NIA Track Dozer

Public Safety Dive Team Track Loader

SWAT/Tactical Team Trailer, Equipment Tag-Trailer N/A
Firefighting Brush Patrol Engine N/A | NFA  N/A Trailer, Dump NIA | NIA NIA

—— e — 4 - +  EEEm—— T

Fire Engine (Pumper) 1 Traller Small Equipment NIA NIA 1
Firefighting Crew Transport i NA i 1  [Truck, On-Road Dump 11 1

Aerial Apparatus, Fire [ 1 NIA N/A | 1 [Truck, Plow 1 1 1 1

Foam Tender NIA NIA Truck, Sewer Flusher 1

Hand Crew 1 Truck, Tractor Trailer 1 |NA
HAZMAT Entry Team N/A Water Pumps, De-Watering 1 |
;‘Engine Strike Team T T 'Wate.r.Fur?ips. Drinking Water Supply T

. — S S S - Auxiliary Pump L ]
‘Water Tender (Tanker) N/A 1 |Water Pump, Water Distribution 1

|Fire Boat N/A Water Pump, Wastewater 1

‘Aerial Lift - Articulating Boorn 1 1 Water Truck NIA NIA N/A

Aerial Lift - S.elf Propelled, Scissor, \Wheel Dozer N A | NA
.Rough Terrain B (N L - s

|Aerial Lift - Telescopic Boom 1 Wheel Loader Backhoe 1 1

| : : | H | =

iAerial Lift - Truck Mounted \Wheel Loader, Large

:Air Compressor 1 Wheel Loader, Medium 1

Concret.e Cutter/Multi-Processor for \Wheel Loader, Small N/A
Hydraulic Excavator — = — }

Electronic Boards, Arrow Wheel Loader, Skid Steer N/A
Electronic Boards, Variable Message | Wheel Loader, Telescopic Handler '

Sians | | il : I
Floodlights ‘ 1 N/A Wood Chipper 1 | N/A | N/A | N/A
Generator _l_ 1 Wood Tub Grinder I

1 N/A

|Grader

*Information about the NIMS Typed resources can be found at;

*Additional resource information is available on the FEMA RelmbL-l_l?sable Equment List:



4. Public Information and Warning -
During a significant emergency, the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and Incident Command
Posts (ICPs) will coordinate and manage public information, both by producing accurate, timely reports
and by tracking what is publicly reported to minimize confusion and help enstre a positive public
_response.

VT-Alert message - State: Vermont Emergency Management: 800-347-0488
. Other VT-Alert managers: | - o
Important Local Websites / ' , Front Porch Forum, Police, Fire
| Social Media channels: | and Ambulance Facebook Pages.
Local Newspaper, Radio, TV: | Vermont Journal, Rutland Herald, Okemo Va@y TV
' Public Notice locations: vt.ug, Town Hall Bulletin Board, Ludlow |

B Post Office, Town Clerk’s Office |
Vermont 2-1-1 is a United Ways of Vermont system that provides 24x7x365 information and referral
services in cooperation with a large number of state and local government and community based
entities. 2-1-1 collects and maintains a database of local resource information and is available to take
calls from the general public to inform and instruct them in relation to emergency events, and to refer

| them to the appropriate response and recovery resource, if necessary. - '

To provide information for 2-1-1 | Dial 211 or (802) 652-4636

5. Vulnerable Populations
" If necessary, the EOC may contact orgamzatfons and facilities, below, that serve vulnerable
populations to identify residents who are at risk based on the emergency. If there are residents at risk
or in danger, the EOC shouid monitor their status and if required coordinate support for them until their
 sifuation stabilizes.

 Name / Notes Contactinfo
' CARE (Citizen Assistance Registration for Emergencies) (Supporting PSAP)
Two Rivers Supervisory Union — School Superintendent ' Lauren Fierman
Ludlow Elementary School | Cathy Farman
G||I Odd Fellows Home & Apartments Meagan Mcelwain
gthas Trailer Park B Terrianne Stryhas ‘
Black River Mobile Home Court Gerald Sheehan _
Black River Good Neighbor Services B ' Krey Kellington
SEVCA

I




6. Shelters

i Dﬁnng some emergencies, the EOC will monitor or coordinate support for residents who are displaced
due to gmperty__r infrastructure damage.

A . Spotitaneous St :

Determlne the apprommate number of people who need sheltenng

Call the State EOC / Watch Officer at 800-347-0488 and request support

Track the status of residents who need shelter until their situation stablllzes |

2 Regionat Shefier: Gl

"Location / Address: | Hartford, VT High School, 37 Highland Avenue, White Rlver Jct 4

Opening Contact: | State EOC, 800-347-0488, American Red Cross, 802-660-9130 |
_Phone Numbers: | 802-295-8610 - - |

 Primary Local Shelter

Locatlon / Address: | Ludlow Commumty Center - 37 Main Street
_Facility Contact(s): 'Brendan McNamara

| Phone Numbers: ' 802-228-2860

- Shelter Manager: ' Nick Miele 802-245-4944

 Staff Requirements: | | Telephone, cots, blankets, food

&

 Services: | Warming Shelter, Food Prep, Showers
‘Notes:  Ca amty: 220 Generator? NO Pets Allowed? YES

Locatlon / Address: Ludlow Town Hall - 37 Depot Street
Fac ility Contact(s): ' Brendan McNamara
' Phone Numbers: | 802-228-2860 or 802-245-4990

Shelter Manager: - Brendan McNamara -
_ Staff Requirements: ~ Telephone, radio, wi-fi, secure building -
_Services: - Warming Shelter B
' Notes: | Capacity: 220 Generator? YES  Pets Allowed? YES

Annexes (Optional, create and letter as needed)

"Ludlow Church of Annunciation — Catholic Church
i Black River Senior Center

See the Vermont Emergency Management (VEM) web site at http://vem.vermont.gov for samplesand
examples of annexes, such as: forms; delegations of authority; debris plans; incident-specific plans,
checklists, and matrices; animal disaster references; etc.



ST

(u) 82/8-822-208 | © LL9V-¥8E-Z08
| (™) 0982-822-208 | ©O066V-5¥Z-208
S}0EJUOD JUBWILIIA0D jedidiungy

_ (m) 8091-¢¥Z-208 _ © L8L¥-Gv2-208

solAH unsnp |

Jleyn -adiA ‘pieog 109j98

uossapues ya.g

BIBWENOW UBpURlg

uewiey ‘pieog 109|eg _

sobeuep [ediojuniy mojpn

€9r/-82¢-208 © ¥891-682-208

8689-822-208 | OV906-9.£-208

@ 86¢6-4117-¢08

+

J9N0d Wed |

uoSISYJIBIN UIASY
euel|

@ LL9Y-18E-C08

|./2€-8C¢-208

(m) Let8-822-208

@ 01¥8-¢56-208

L16¢-8¢¢-208

@otw-mmm-mom
(W) L/22-822-208 | © 9956-022-208

SJORJUOY SHIOM 2liqnd 18907

uos.iapues neig
gueIpnes) sor

uoljels JajsuelL mojpnT |
sSpuno.o)
pue Suip|ing mojpn

JOMOd UIBJUNOJ USRIS) |

_ 1deq 1uBr1 owoei3 9BElIA
RUIBN JejEMBISEM B JRIBM |

uosiajed pireq |
l9g/e | pleuoy |

| ®0788-062-L19 |
() L1 p-822-208 |

() 0086-1.8€-£09
| __ (m) oo9v-zzL-208 |
(™) L1¥1r822-208 = © 1290-78E-208

(m) 0882-822-208 | © $€9¢-08¢-208

o 8/£-958-208

uep|y du3 |

30lj0d MojpnT

mojpnT
-abeies AemybiH a1€18 1A _

uewsio4 peoy mojpnT |

12040 UYESH MopNT

19)usQ yojedsiq dtjod 18207 |

Jawed uely

youai4 Auoyuy 17 |
sbul|ig Aeuger |

J9ADID) alueydalg

Husyg AuUnoD JOSPUMA |
JoisuILSaM — 821j0d 21B)S |

91|0d J0 JaIYD

JaIyD aouenquy SN

[[eSSIy el |

J2IY0 auld findagpuelsissy

| cé :Nm.wwm.wom | ©95¥S-¥8¢-208

sjoejuoy uoneziuebip om:on_mu.m jeao]

@ ommv.mvN.Now

BIRWENOIN UBpUalg

BpUua|0Y| Jojad

| () mmwm-ﬁo.momf. ® £29€-95€-208 7

joy0 a4 |

10]BUIpIO0T) AT

wea| EoEomacms_ AouabBiawg [eso

llessiy ej@buy |

| ayeussyy | ajewayy >._mE_._n_ |
NOAN ‘OLIOH ‘ajiqo d1ed1pul - m._on_.::: ocoe_n_

awieN |

J0308.10 a3

uonisod



—

¥

S108}U0D 12430

I .

ew-3

@ 0915-8€2-208 Aasexary eipusy

(M) 1515528208 | ojoquiyD eueld

(M) 12L1-628-208
(m) Goe€-5/8-208 |

ueuue4 >|£mo
UBLLISIH UaJneT

@ LL971P8E-C08

| ©6v52-08€-208

(s14g) [ooyos |

Juapuadapu] Janly ¥Ielg |

3P0 PUISIF 100YIS NSHLL |
Ci# 10BIJUOD J004IS NSHL
L# JOEJUOD [O0UYDS NSHL

(m) 1 22Z€e-822-208 |

uosiapueg jaig |

© 6689-G¥£-208

| (m) zeze-822-208

Sewsslly | ojeussly

(u) vegr-82z-208 | 350y pire( |
(m) 8z82-822-208 f %000 elin
Aewd aweN

YO} “OUIOH ‘B]IGOI 2)E3lpul - SIACUINU dUOYd |

UINQUSEAA |JET |

uspIeAA @il 159104

reys-oIA ‘sevysniy sbejin |

uewuieyd ‘ssaisny| abea
...m.:._wmm.r_hm Ivtm_o Umo |
uonisod




——— z = = T S —

-4

llew-3 | glewseyy | ojewsd)y | Alewnd | awe | uonisod
| MOM ‘OWOH “9[IGOW 2)ed1pUl - SIGLUNU duoyd _




March 6, 2024

| was appointed to be a Lister and have enjoyed being on the board. | would like to be considered and
reappointed for the one year term. Thank you

b Ul

Doug Sheehan



March 6, 2024

| was appointed to be a Trustee of Public funds and have enjoyed being on the board. | would like to be
considered and reappointed for the one year term. Thank you

(QM 7 ,‘Z%& /,;, Yy
7/

Doug Sheehan



Jeffrey P. Billings

Chief of Police
FO.Box B

Ludlow, VT 05149-0250

Ludlow, Ve._rmbnt

A Better Place To Live, Work & Play,

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION LETTER

DATE: March 21, 2024

TO: LUDLOW BOARD OF SELECTMEN,

XX At this time, | can find no reason why the Board of Selectmen should not issue a Liquor License
to the establishments listed on the request form submitted by Town Clerk Ulla Cook.

¥

At this time, | would recommend that the Board of Selectmen not issue a Liquor License to the
establishment above.

Respectfully;

ffrey Billings

Chief of Police

Any Season Is The Right Season to Visit Ludlow
Proud Sponsor Of The Dare Program

Municipal Offic
Ph..802-228-44
Fax 802-228-55
police@ludlow.



46 Depot Street Annex LLC Stemwinder 46 Depot Street 8309-001-1RST-001
Y stemwindervt@amail.com 8309-001-3RST-001
8309-001-OUTC-001

v Rose Douglas and Ann Rose Douglas and Ann 820 Route 100 North 5821-001-SECN-001
gamsh@tds.net
v/ O&V Restaurant LLC D.J.'s Restaurant 146 Main Street 10043-001-1RST-001

10043-001-3RST-001
10043-001-0UTC-001

disrestaurantvt@agmail.com

ool
cin

s Cr IR



OKEMO 2024-25

Okemo Mountain Food and Beverage
adcarter@vailresorts.com

 EPIC

v Sitting Bull Lounge-Base Lodge

v Smoky Joe's Grill

v Sky Bar

~ Jackson Gore Inn

4 Corner Store at Jackson Gore

77 Okemo Ridge Rd

77 Okemo Ridge Rd

77 Okemo Ridge Rd

77 Okemo Ridge Rd

111 Jackson Gore Rd

77 Okemo Ridge Rd

6900-004-1RST-001
6900-004-OUTC-001
6900-004-3RST-001

6900-003-1RST-001
6900-003-OQUTC-001
6900-003-3RST-001

6900-006-1RST-001
6900-006-OUTC-001

6900-005-1RST-001
6900-005-OUTC-001
6900-005-3RST-001

6900-001-1HTL-0M1
6900-001-OUTC-001
6900-001-OUTC-002
6900-001-QUTC-003
6900-001-3HTL-001

6900-007-SECN-001

CF8I-3y

ck

115.00

115.00

115.00

115.00

115.00

70.00

645.00

pr OF T



Select Board Meeting April 1, 2024

\ American Legion Ballard Hobard Post 36 American Legion
ballardhobart@comcast.net

Brockton Corporation Shaw's Beer and Wine
VY legallicensing.team@albertsons.com

. +EOB Tap House LLP Eight Oh Brew Tap House
drink@eightohbrew.com

J J W Sandri Inc Sunoco Station
rcoyne@sandri.com

4 Johnny's Kitchen LLP Johnny's Kitchen LLP
johnnyskitchenvt@amail.com

KMS Inc The Hatchery

! hatcheryludlow@hotmail.comgmsh(@tds.net

Vermont Irish Pub LLC The Killarney
m8367@aol.com

»~ Twelve Thirty Four LLC MOJO Café
~ Stuart, Leslie Pearson The Wine and Cheese Depot
2 Q-aYy

ok y
M- g A fe

135 Main Street

213 Main Street

145 Main St

224 Main Street

126 Main Street

164 Main Street

44 Pond Street

145 Main Street
Unit 101

46 Depot Street

1247-001-1CLB-001
1247-001-OUTC-001
1247-001-3CLB-001

3544-013-SECN-001
3544-013-TOBC-001

10597-001-1RST-001
10597-001-3RST-001

458-013-SECN-001
TOBACCO

10564-001-1RST-001
10564-001-OUTC-001
Third Class

5760-001-3RST-001

5613-001-1RST-001
5613-001-3RST-001
5613-001-OUTC-001
5613-001-OUTC-002

8494-001-1RST-001
8494-001-3RST-001
8494-001-OUTC-001

3228-001-SECN-001



- 8038=-G | Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations

(Rev. September 2011) » Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e} OMB No. 1545-0720
Department of the Treasury . . > see. se'parate instructions.
Internal Revenue Service Caution: /f the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC.
Reporting Authority If Amended Return, check here » []
Issuer’s name 2 Issuer's employer identification number (EIN)
Town of Ludlow 03-6000541
3a Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return {see instructions) 3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a
4 Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite 5 Report number (For IRS Use Only)
PO Box 307 |3 |
6 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7 Date of issue
Ludiow, VT 05149-0307 April 1, 2024
8 Name of issue 9 CUSIP number
2024 Truck and Grader NA
10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information {see 10b Telephone number of officer or other
instructions) employee shown on 10a
Ulla Cook, Treasurer 802-228-3232
IEZRT  Type of Issue (enter the issue price). See the instructions and attach schedule.
11 Education . . O 11
12  Health and hospital 12
13  Transportation 13 327,000 00
14  Public safety . 14
15 Environment (including sewage bonds) 15
16  Housing 16
17  Utilities . 17
18  Other. Describe > 18
19  If obligations are TANs or RANs, checkonlybox19a . . . . . . . . . . . . . W O
if obligations are BANs, check only box 196 . . . . c.os s s ow e w
20 If obligations are in the form of a lease or instaliment sale, check box A
Pa Description of Obligations. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed.
{a) Final maturity date (b} Issue price © ;liztee:trgda?mi;:;ion av(:r)a\s/:ingrzti?i ty (e) Yield
21 04/01/2029 $ 327,000 $ 65,400 3 yvears 4.87 9%
m_Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
Proceeds used for accrued interest . e e e 22
23 Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21 column (b)) 23 327,000| 00
24 Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) . . 24
25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement ., . . . . 25
26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund . 26
27 Proceeds used to currently refund priorissues . . . . . . . . . 27
28 Proceeds used to advance refund priorissues . . . . . . . . . 28
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . 29
Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract I|ne 29 from Ilne 23 and enter amount here) 30 327,000| 00
Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.
31  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be currently refunded . years
32  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be advance refunded . years

33  Enter the last date on which the refunded bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY) .
34 Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued » (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 637735

Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2011)



TOWN OF LUDLOW
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT NOTE

$327,000.00
April 1, 2024

The Town of Ludlow, Vermont, for the value received, unconditionally promises to pay in lawful
money of the United States to the M&T BANK, or registered assigns, the principal sum of:

*xpkkkkrrkxxx THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 4k ®kdiokx

with interest at the rate of 4.87% per annum (the "Exempt Rate"), in Five (5) annual principal payments
of $65,400.00 each, which installments are due and payable on each April lst, beginning on April 1,
2025, and continuing until the last payment which is due on April 1, 2029. Interest on the unpaid
principal balance of this note shall be payable annually in conjunction with the principal payment
schedule stated above. The rate of interest payable hereunder is subject to recalculation and payment of
a higher rate, retroactive to the date hereof, upon the happening of any event specified in paragraph (5)
of the Resolution of the Town of Ludlow dated April 1, 2024, the terms of which are incorporated
herein by reference thereto. Further, this note and all sums of money due hereunder shall be due and
payable at the option of the holder hereof upon the happening of any event specified in paragraph (5) of
said Resolution.

Both principal and interest are payable at the Office of the registered holder identified on the within
Certificate of Registration, or the registered assignee. Principal and interest may be prepaid by the Issuer of
this note, in whole or in part, prior to the above maturity date.

This note for $327,000.00 is issued to purchase a Truck and Grader. The borrowing was
authorized by a vote of the Town of Ludlow. The borrowing evidenced was authorized by a vote of the
Select Board of the Town of Ludlow at a meeting thereof duly noticed, called and held on April 1,
2024,

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent
to and in the issuance of this note have been done, have happened, and have been performed in regular
and due form as required by law, and that the full faith and credit of the said Town of Ludlow are
hereby irrevocably pledged for payment of this note.

Dated: April 1, 2024 SELECT BOARD

Treasurer By All or a Majority Thereof



TOWN OF LUDLOW
$327,000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 4.87% FIXED NOTE
DATED APRIL 1, 2024, DUE APRIL 1, 2025 THROUGH
APRIL 1, 2029
INTEREST DUE APRIL 1, 2025 THROUGH APRIL 1, 2029

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

It is hereby certified that this note is a registered note, with principal and interest payable
only to the holder as appears in the books and records of the Treasurer of the issuer. This note
may be transferred by presentation of the same with an assignment in writing signed by the
registered holder. Presentation shall be made to the Treasurer of the issuer who shall record such
transfer in the records of the issuer and on the note. The name and address of the original
registered owner of this note is M&T BANK, Buftfalo, New York.

Dated as of April 1, 2024 TOWN OF LUDLOW

By:

It's Treasurer/Transfer Agent



TOWN OF LUDLOW
RESOLUTION
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT BORROWING

WHEREAS, the Select Board are authorized and empowered to borrow money on the credit of the Town of Ludlow for
the purposes of making certain capital highway equipment purchases, and

WHEREAS, the Select Board of the Town of Ludlow find it expedient and in the best interest of the Town to borrow
the sum of $327,000.00 to purchase a Truck and Grader.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Select Board, for and in behalf of the said Town of Ludlow to borrow the
sum of $327,000.00 from M&T BANK, the said loan to be evidenced by a promissory note in the amount of $327,000.00 to
be signed on behalf of the Town of Ludlow by its Select Board and dated April 1, 2024 payable to M&T BANK on the 1%
day of April 2029, with interest at the rate of 4.87% per annum.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said evidence of debt when issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution shall
be a valid and binding general obligation of the Town of Ludlow, payable according to the terms and tenor thercof from
unlimited ad valorem taxes duly apportioned and assessed on the grand list of taxable property in said Town, as established
by law, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all acts and things heretofore done by the lawfully constituted officers of the
Town of Ludlow and its Select Board in, about or concerning the expenditure of proceeds of the Note are hereby ratified and
confirmed, and

WE, the said Select Board of the Town of Ludlow hereby certify that the Note is issued pursuant to authority, that no
proceeding relating thereto has been taken other than as shown in the foregoing recital, that no such authority or action has
been amended or repealed, and that there is no litigation threatened or pending in any state or federal court of competent
jurisdiction seeking to enjoin either the issnance of the Note or the expenditures being financed by the proceeds of the same.

WE further certify that no litigation is pending or threatened affecting the validity of the Note or the apportionment and
assessment of taxes, if necessary to pay the same when due, that neither the corporate existence nor the boundaries of the
Town of Ludlow, nor the title of any of us to our respective offices, is being questioned or contested.

FURTHER, we hereby certify to and covenant with M&T BANK, its successors and assigns, including specifically the
transferees, assignees, holders and owners of the above-described note, that:

(1) No proceeds of the Note (including investment proceeds thereof) will be used (directly or indirectly) in any trade or
business carried on by any person other than the Town of Ludlow, nor used to make or finance loans to any person.

(2) The Town of Ludlow will file when and as required with the Treasury Department or the Internal Revenue Service
information returns relating to the issuance of the Note and all other obligations of the «CustomerName».

(3) The Town of Ludlow will comply with, perform, maintain and keep each and every covenant, representation,
certification and undertaking in the accompanying Tax Certificate, execution and delivery of which is hereby authorized.

(4) That the Town of Ludlow reasonably expects to issue less than $5,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations during the
current calendar year, thereby qualifying the Town as a “small issuer” under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code™).

(5) The interest charged to and payable by the Town of Ludlow under the Note shall be recalculated at the rate of
8.12% and paid to the holder thereof in any one of the following events:

(a) It shall be determined that the interest paid under said note, or any part thereof, is included in the
gross income of the holder, thereof for federal income tax purposes.



(b) There shall be any breach by the Town of Ludlow of any covenant set forth in paragraphs (1)-(4)
hereof.

WE further certify that all the transactions embodied in this Resolution were approved, adopted and undertaken in full
compliance with all applicable open meeting, access to public records, public bid and public solicitation and procurement
laws, regulations and policies.

WE further certify that we are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers of the Town of Ludlow as indicated below,
and we acknewledge that the foregoing action was taken at a meeting duly noticed, called and held on April 1, 2024, whereat

we were present and voting affirmatively.

Dated: April 1, 2024 SELECT BOARD

Treasurer By All or a Majority Thereof

The foregoing signatures are true and genuine. Attest:

Clerk



TOWN OF LUDLOW
TAX CERTIFICATE
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT BORROWING

WE, the Treasurer and at least a majority of the Select Board of the Town of Ludlow (the "Issuer"), hereby certify and
represent as follows with respect to the $327,000.00 Capital Equipment Note of the Issuer (the "Note"), which Note is dated
April 1, 2024, payable as herein set forth:

(1) The Issuer is issuing and delivering the Note simultaneously with the delivery of this Certificate.
(2) We are the officers of the Issuer charged by law with the responsibility for issuing the Note.
(3) The Note is being issued to purchase a Truck and Grader.

(4) Substantial binding obligations to pay the expenses being financed by the Note have been made, consisting at least
of a Resolution adopted by the legislature body of the Issuer, committing the Issuer to proceed with the expenditures,
payment of which shall be out of the proceeds of the Note.

(5) The entire amount borrowed by the issuance of the Note, together with all of such, if any, amounts previously
raised or borrowed for the same purpose, does not exceed the total costs of all such expenses less all other funds available for
the purpose, and all of the proceeds of the Note have been or are expected to be needed and expended for such current
expenses within three (3) years from the date of the first borrowing for the project.

(6) Payment of said capital equipment financed by the Note has proceeded and is expected to proceed hereafter with
due diligence to completion.

(7) The Note is not being issued to refund notes previously issued for the same purpose described in paragraph (3)
above.

(8) Any real and personal property, acquisition of which has been financed by the Note, has not been and is not
expected during the life of the Note to be sold or otherwise disposed of for consideration.

(9) The Issuer has not created and does not expect to create or establish any debt service fund, bond payment reserve,
sinking fund or other similar fund pledged to the payment of the Note or from which it is expected that payment of the Note
would be made.

(10) It is expected that any earnings or net profit derived from investment or deposit of the proceeds of the Note,
including transferred proceeds, any accrued interest received upon its sale and any premium received on the delivery thereof,
will be expended for governmental purposes within the period stated in paragraph (5) above to the extent such funds are not
commingled for accounting purposes in the general funds of the Issuer with tax and other substantial operating revenues.

(11) To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable.

(12) The Issuer has not been notified of any action by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue Service to disqualify it as
an issuer whose arbitrage certificates may be relied upon.

(13) The Issuer shall create and maintain records and books of account with respect to the Note and the
expenditures financed by the proceeds thereof. In the furtherance thereof, the Issuer adopts those Tax-Exempt
Obligation Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures attached hereto as Exhibit A.

(14) No part of the proceeds of the Note, nor the expenditures financed by the proceeds of the Note shall be:

(a) Used directly or indirectly in a trade or business by any person other than the Issuer or another
governmental entity;



(b) Loaned to any person directly or indirectly other than the Issuer;

(¢) The subject of any contract, lease or agreement of any sort having a term of one year or more and
calling for the payment by the Issuer of consideration other than a flat fee;

(d) Expended to finance the construction, alteration or renovation of any improvement the use,
occupancy, availability or beneficial enjoyment of which shall be restricted among public users thereof or for which
preferential, different or unique fees, rates, assessments or charges shall be levied;

(e) Invested in such a manner or for such a period or at a yield to result in the rebate of interest
earnings thereon to the United States under any public law now or hereafter in effect; and

(f) Used to fund a reserve, sinking or replacement fund.

(15) The Issuer shall furnish to the United States, or any agency, department or instrumentality thereof, in a timely
fashion, such information as may be required by law with respect to all evidences of debt now or hereafier issued by the
Issuer.

(16) Neither the proceeds of the Note, nor any earnings derived from the investment thereof, shall be expended for the
purpose of paying any costs associated with the issuance of the Note.

(17) The Note will not be refunded or otherwise paid, defeased or secured by the proceeds of any form of debt issued
by the Issuer, unless the manner of such payment, refunding or security preserves the tax-exempt character of the Note under
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, the “Code”).

(18) The proceeds of the Note shall not be invested for a period or at a yield so as to render the interest payable on the
Note includable in the gross income of the holder(s) thereof.

(19) The proceeds of the Note will not be used in a manner that will cause the Note to an “arbitrage bond™ or a “private
activity bond” as defined in Sections 103(c), 141 and 148§ of the Code

(20) The Note is designated a “qualified obligation” under Section 265(b) of the Code.
This Certificate is executed and is being delivered pursuant to Section 1.148-2 (b),(2),(1) of the Treasury Regulations.

Dated: April 1, 2024 SELECT BOARD

Treasurer By All or a Majority Thereof

The foregoing signatures are true and genuine. Attest:

Clerk



EXHIBIT A

TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATION POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES

The following procedures have been adopted by the Issuer, effective as of the date of issue of the Note. These
procedures shall be implemented immediately and shall relate to the Note and all currently outstanding and future debt
obligations and financing leases. These procedures are intended to assist the Issuer in complying with those provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and the regulations promulgated by the U.S. Treasury thereunder (the “Code™)
relating to (a) the qualified use of proceeds of the Issuer’s tax-exempt and other tax advantaged bonds and notes and
improvements financed by such proceeds; (b) arbitrage yield restrictions and rebate; (c) remediation of the effects of
“deliberate action” of the Issuer which results in the disposition, abandonment or other change in use of property financed by
the Issuer’s debt obligations and (d) the resolution of matters raised in connection with an audit or examination of the Issuer’s
tax-exempt or tax-advantaged obligations. These procedures are intended to furnish guidance in matters of Code compliance,
and are subject to revision, modifications and enlargement from time to time.

M

@

3)

@

&)

®

The Tssuer official or employee possessing the statutory or contractual powers, functions and
responsibilities of a Chief Financial Officer (to the extent the same are not exercised by the Issuer’s
Treasurer) shall be responsible for monitoring tax exempt obligations post-issuance compliance (the
“Compliance Official”).

The Compliance Official shall review and implement these procedures in the manner necessary to ensure
ongoing compliance with the provisions of the Tax Certificate. In connection therewith such official will
become knowledgeable or consult an advisor experienced in post issuance compliance and will review and
monitor notices, advice and directives as may be received by the Issuer from its bond counsel, accountants,
financial advisors, and governmental sources. At least once annually the Compliance Official will verify
that it is in compliance with the terms of the Tax Certificate, including this Exhibit A.

On or before the first day of June in each year, the Compliance Official shall confirm that all Issuer
property financed by the proceeds of the Issuer’s obligations continues to be used in the same manner as
existed when such property was first placed into service. Such conformation shall be based upon a visual
inspection and representations of the public officials under whose care, custody and control the property is
placed.

For so long as the proceeds of any debt obligation of the Issuer remain unexpended, the Compliance
Official shall confirm on the first day of June and the first day of December in each year that such proceeds
are deposited or invested for a “temporary period” as established under Section 148 of the Code. Such
confirmation shall be deemed to have occurred for so long as any proceeds of the Issuer’s tax exempt or tax
advantaged obligation are in the custody of a trustee, paying agent, or disbursing agent pending
expenditures upon requisition thereof. Following the third anniversary of the issuance of an obligation by
the Issuer, all unexpended proceeds shall be invested so as to generate a yield no greater than the yield on
the corresponding obligation.

The Compliance Official shall confirm, at least annually while there are unexpended proceeds, that the
proceeds of each obligation of the Issuer shall be expended in such amounts, at such frequency, and in such
intervals to ensure that the Issuer avails itself of one or more arbitrage rebate exception allowed under
Section 148 of the code. Altematively, if rebate is due, the Compliance Official will engage a consultant to
prepare a report to determine any rebate due.

With respect to the acquisition and construction of capital improvements financed with the proceeds of the
Issuer’s debt obligations, the Issuer hereby declares that such proceeds shall be allocated to acquisition and
construction expenditures prior to the expenditure and application of funds from any other public or private
source. A final expenditure report accounting for the use of all proceeds and earnings of Issuer’s debt
obligations shall be completed no later than 18 months after the improvements financed by the Issuer’s debt
obligation is placed in service.



™)

®

®

(10)

In the event there is a change of use, abandonment or disposition of property financed by the proceeds of a
debt obligation of the Issuer, the Compliance Official shall immediately consult with the Issuer’s bond
counsel and accountants regarding remedial action. The Issuer thereafter shall endeavor to call and redeem
all or a portion of outstanding debt obligations, the proceeds of which were expended to finance such
property. The proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of the financed property shall not be
commingled with other funds of the Issuer, but shall be used to effect the redemption of obligations, if
necessary, the proceeds of which financed such property. Pending redemption as called for in this section,
such proceeds shall be invested at a yield no greater than the yield on the obligations to be redeemed.

The Compliance Official shall create and preserve records for the term of the Issuer’s debt obligations and
any refunding thereof plus three years documenting the procedures incident to the authorization and
issuance and identifying the proceeds of each issue of the Issuer’s obligations, the deposit and investment
thereof, the income derived from such deposit and investment, the expenditure of such proceeds and
investment income (containing at a minimum the date, amount and recipient of each expenditure), payment
requisitions, and all rate, fee, charge and assessment schedules relating to property financed by the Issuer’s
obligations. Such records shall include copies of loan agreements, escrow agreements, tax certificates,
project bid documents, construction and acquisition contracts, project invoices, project-related bank
statements, and documents related to anticipatory bond financing.

The Compliance Official shall retain all contracts or arrangements with non-governmental persons relating
to the use, control and management of the improvements financed by the Issuer’s debt obligation.

In the event there remain on hand any excess proceeds from an Issuer debt obligation, following acquisition
or completion of the improvements for which such obligation was issued, the Compliance Official shall
consult with the Issuer’s bond counsel regarding the use of such proceeds.



UPS CampusShip: View/Print Label

1. Ensure there are no other shipping or tracking labels attached to your package. Select the Print button on
the print dialog box that appears. Note: If your browser does not support this function select Print from the
File menu to print the label.

2. Fold the printed label at the solid line below. Place the label in a UPS Shipping Pouch. If you do not have a
pouch, affix the folded label using clear plastic shipping tape over the entire label.

3. GETTING YOUR SHIPMENT TO UPS
Customers with a Daily Pickup
Your driver will pickup your shipment(s) as usual.

Customers without a Daily Pickup
Schedule a same day or future day Pickup to have a UPS driver pickup all your CampusShip packages.
Hand the package to any UPS driver in your area.
Take your package to any location of The UPS Store®, UPS Drop Box, UPS Customer Center, Staples® or
Authorized Shipping Outlet near you. ltems sent via UPS Return Services(SM) (including via Ground) are also
accepted at Drop Boxes. To find the location nearest you, please visit the Resources area of CampusShip
and select UPS Locations.
FOLD HERE

10F1
™

1P

LTR

WNTNVS50 13.0A 03/2024*

UPS NEXT DAY AIR SAVER

TRACKING #: 1Z 1A5 229 13 9835 3946

VT 054 0-02

%
{,'.ff
%
]
o'ﬁ{i‘i %
€5 24.1.00.

;

0’0
.
*e
,

4,
¥
s'g.;

e
5"
s

o,
3
.
>
3
23
-
)
%

S
0
&

%

o,

vt
’03;
D ;-

53

%

BANK - BURLINGTON 5Q

660-1356

T
o

’.".

£
£40
2.9

¢,
.
.
.
4
2
&
e
o
o
Wooe

o
o;.
o

BURLINGTON VT 05401-6042

ML

MICHAEL KEGLER
BILLING: P/P

%

SUITE 100

77 PINE ST
s

o,
&
1
s
]

&

%

.
3

4}

4

L]

4

&1 BANK - BURLINGTON SQ
77 PINE ST
"
L3
7

¥
p)

..};.

. .*
%

¥

&
Company Cost-Center: 001-8668

BURLINGTON VT 05401

MICHAEL KEGLER
(803)660-135¢
SHIP TO:

*,




Bid Opening

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 @ 10:00 a.m.

2024 Hwy F-660 Diesel Truck with Hook-Lift Set -Up/Plow Package

VENDOR BID

Claremont Ford Net Price $173,837.40




Bid Opening

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 @ 10:30 a.m.

FY2025 Town Summer Paving- Okemo Access Rd

VENDOR BID
Fuller Sand $264,070.32 $82.58/Ton
Pike Industries $385,441.32 $106.52/Ton
Wilk Paving $282,396.00 $81.90/Ton
Springfield Paving $345,012.00 $98.72/Ton
Bazin Bros. $331,752.75 $94.50/Ton




8.

9.

Town of Ludlow
Department Head Reports

February 2024

. Ambulance — Stephanie Grover

Building & Grounds — Kevin MacPherson

. Fire Department — Chief Peter Kolenda (Available at meeting)

Highway — Ron Tarbell

. Listers — Jeannie Stasz
. Parks & Recreation — Nick Miele

. Planning/Zoning — Rosemary Goings

Police — Chief Jeffrey Billings

Town Clerk/Treasurer — Ulla Cook

10.Transfer Station — Pattie Potter



.

4‘4/\ COMMUNITY AMBULANCE SERVICE. ro.BOX 359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-284]1 FAX (802) 228-2813

Ludlow Ambulance Service
February 1, 2024 — Februaryv 29, 2024

Total Calls
February 2024: 90 Calls February 2023- 102 Calls
Ambulance Calls February 2024
e Ludlow 76
« Cavendish
+  Proctorsville
¢ Plymouth
»  Mount Holly
*  Chester
o Shrewsbury
e Andover
* Reading
*  Weston
« Londonderry
» Springfield Hospital/ Springfield
» Rutland Hospital
»  Mount Ascutney Hospital
¢ Mutual Aid received

Transports

Springfield Hospital 63
Dartmouth

Landing Zone

Mount Ascutney

Rutland Hospital 4
No Transports/Stand by Coverage 23
Gill Home

Cheshire Medical Center

Home

Valley Regional Hospital

W W N

—1) Buckle Up For Safety @[—




N

_~4 /\ COMMUNITY AMBULANCE SERVICE, P0.BOX 359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-2841 FAX (802) 228-2813

LAS Updates:

February was a slower month than what we see historically. Qur patient transports were up from last month
but overall, the call volume was down slightly.
Our new cardiac monitors arrived this month and were put in service in both trucks. Our previous monitors
were 8 years old and bought refurbished. We began having issues with one of the monitors and after
speaking with company we leamed that sending the monitors in for repair would mean that per the FDA
they would be legally bound to fix anything they found wrong with it, the age of the monitors and the fact
that they were refurbished was leading us to believe that the motherboard was failing and to repair it could
mean that it would cost roughly ten thousand dollars. We were able to defer payments on the new monitors
until July 2024 and spread the payments out over the course of five years making it more manageable. The
new machines are the same operating platform as the previous model but they have new integrated features
to allow for more advanced airway monitoring so our patients can receive the best possible outcome.
Work continues on developing and establishing a regional technical rescue program. We have officially
registered it with the VT Secretary of State under the name Okemo Valley Technical Rescue Inc and have
obtained an EIN number. Our next step will be to continue to pursue 501¢3 non-profit status with the IRS.
We have a meeting scheduled on Monday March 18 where we will be inviting all of the town managers
and selectboard members from the towns that will encompass our coverage area. We are hoping for the
towns support and backing from the governing bodies and have full transparency of what we are working
towards as we move forward. The following Monday we are meeting with all of the local fire departments,
and EMS agencies staff as an informational meeting before we open up applications into the program. We
are also developing our bylaws and drafting a letter that we will disperse to local businesses for financial
support to get the program rolling.
I have been working on updating our department SOGs which have not been updated since August 2020.
A first draft of the update has been sent to the town manager but we will continue to work on it in March.
All employees also received reviews which we have just begun doing reviews twice a year as opposed to
the yearly reviews as requested by the town. We are hopefully that doing it twice a year will keep everyone
on track with goals to be reached in a shorter timeframe while also having a more frequent dialog of
expectations for everyone.

Stephanie Grover

EMS Chief

Ludlow Ambulance Service

—1) Buckle Up For Safety @[ —




LUDLOW BUILDING & GROUNDS
Monthly Report

FEBRUARY 2024

The following was performed the following work during the Month of February:

* General maintenance and cleaning of the Town Hall, Dorsey Park, Public Safety
Building, Community Center and all parks

* Fire extinguisher checks

* Plowing, shoveling and salting of Town & Village properties during the month

* Shoveled roofs of buildings

* Performed Cemetery checks

* Set up and cleaned for Auditorium for Town Meeting and Village Meeting

* Painting at Dorsey finished up

+  Weekly checks at high school on boilers and other issues and repairs

* Furnace repairs and installs have been taken care of at buildings

» Met with VT Elevator Inspectors & coordinated annual inspections at Senior Center
and Town Hall, and school

Respectfully-subpitteds— —

Kevirr
Building & Grounds Foreman



LUDLOW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

Monthly Report - February
2024

e Winter Highway Maintenance

e Transfer Station

o Crushed & Load Dumpsters

= Demo
= cardboard

o Turning compost
e Equipment Maintenance

o Police Cruiser Maintenance

o Ambulance Maintenance

o Maintenance on highway trucks/ equipment
o Trees & Brush

o Ongoing Clean-up from Storm Damage

o Cut/Chip Brush Trailside-Old Weston Mtn. Roads
e Other/Miscellaneous

o FEMA documentation
New 2024 Backhoe was delivered
Winging snow back/Pushback Intersections, turn arounds
Cold patching Ongoing
Open Culverts/Drains ditches
Haul Winter sand
Weight limit signs- Installed
Open Culverts

0O 0000 O0O0

Respectively submitted,

Ronald Tarbell
Highway Foreman



TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF LISTERS AND ASSESSOR
P.0.BOX 359
LUDLOW, VT. 05149
PHONE 802-228-7206
listers@ludlow.vt.us

LISTERS AND ASSESSOR'’S OFFICE
FEBRUARY 2024 MONTLY REPORT

On February 20%, a tax abatement meeting was held in the Howard Barton
Conference room. There were 12 parcels requesting a property tax abatement due
to the flooding in July. Out of the 12 parcels, 8 were granted, and 4 denied, with
one parcel being granted a partial abatement. There was also a request for a tax
abatement on a parcel of land that had been taxed on additional land that had
been sold, tax abatement was granted on the overage.

Permit inspections are underway, with more than 75% of them completed.

We have seen a slow down in property transfers and building permits, mainly due
to the time of the year.

Respectfully,

Ludlow Listers & Assessor’s Office



Directors Report

February 29, 2024

Youth Basketball: The youth basketball teams finished up in the middle of February, with the
5/6 boys and girls teams participating in post season tournaments. During President’s week we
hosted 4-team boys and girls tournament and our boys team won a thriller to advance to the
championship game. After the tournament we set are sights on the March Mayhem
tournament in Flood Brook.

Youth Baseball and Softball: The registration for the youth baseball and softball season is
available and we are working with the Cavendish recreation department to have one
registration. This will allow us to break teams up more efficiently because we lost fields due to
the flooding. We plan to use Fletcher, Dorsey and even Mt. Holly for practices and some games.
In the next few weeks, we will go over the equipment and be ready for the season.

Special Events: There are many special events that are approaching quickly such as the Great
Ludlow Egg Hunt on April 6th as we are finalizing the details on the hunt, various games and a
fun pancake breakfast. This event is a great event every year because of the community
support and the kids love seeing the Easter Bunny. This year Green Up Day will occur on May 4t
which continues to generate a substantial number of volunteers to help pick up trash which will
beautify the Town of Ludlow. | have started to connected with Green Up Vermont to help
promote the goal of Greening up from Top to Bottom. This is super important because it is to
be a part of a Guiness Book of World Records. | have also been able to connect with their
corporate partners to enhance our Green Up Day BBQ. The ability to promote this event to the
community early will allow us better participation and clean up more road side trash. Finally,
we have set a date for the Fireworks which will be on the 5t of July. The event will take place
around the Okemo Base Area which worked out better than expected. We are looking forward
to improving last years event, by recognizing our sponsors more and developing additional
activities for the kids.

Thanks,

Nick Miele, Director of Parks and Recreation



Monthly Report for February 2024
from the Planning/Zoning Department

Zoning Applications — 5 Complete; 9 Incomplete/Pending
Bianchi - 2

Subdivision - 2

DRB - 1 Complete, and 9 Incomplete Applications
Certificate of Occupancy - 0 New; 2 Denied

Site inspections - 2

New 911 Addresses - 1

Violations -2

- Zoning applications consisted of 1 Commercial Renovation project at 29 main Street for
a future cider donut establishment; 1 permit for a 250’ shed; 2 new homes; and 1 home
addition. There are another 9 or so pending applications, waiting for completion. The
incomplete applicants have either not paid, not submitted complete plans, or not
provided waste water permits, etc.

- Bianchi’s requested for single family homes.

- Subdivision applications were to 1) split a lot on Flatow Road to build a single family
home behind, and 2) divide a single lot at 1 Parker A venue into four lots for future
development.

-DRB Appilication process has changed to collect ALL required information prior to
scheduling a hearing. The 1 complete application was for a Flood Hazard Review of the
soon to be Blue Duck Deli at 117 Main Street, and was placed on the February Agenda.
There were 9 application processes started, but remain incomplete as of the end of
February. Because of this, the March DRB hearing will consist of only recessed hearings.
This provides a way to move applicant more efficiently through the DRB process, which
saves much time for the Planning and Zoning Department, the DRB members, and the
public.

- Site visit was for a Certificate of Occupancy prior to listing a home at 143 Okemo Acres.
CO was not granted due to the level of renovations required to make it habitable, and
also the possibility of recreating multiple units in the one dwelling following the sale. The
new owners must submit a request for Occupancy following renovations of the home.
The other denied Certificate of Occupancy was for a large home constructed with 5
bedrooms and an 8-person maximum occupancy as stated by the State Fire Marshal.
Upon inspection of the home, twenty-two beds were observed throughout 6 bedrooms,
12 were observed in one room marked as a den on the submitted building plans.



- New 911 addresses were reviewed with the VT GIS Specialist to confirm changes, adds,
and removals as necessary. Due to the volume of work in the department, there are
several addresses that need to be updated, and multiple recipients (USPS, Town Clerk,
Listers, TDS, Police, etc.) of new and changed addresses still waiting on about a dozen
addresses.

Since the Great Flood of 23, the Planning and Zoning office has been inundated with
additional tasks related to compliance obligations of the National Flood Insurance
Program, in which Ludlow participates. Over 230 letters to both home and business
owners were assembled for mailings to those non-substantially damaged, as well as 20
mailing to substantially damaged owners. In addition to running each of the 230 + first
class letters through the postal machine, the remaining letters need to be sent via
certified mail, which requires assembly of labels and handwriting addressed on postal
forms.

Stemming from the Great Flood of ‘23 have also been 2 Violation Letters (so far), which
subsequently entail the appeals process, and conversations with the department’s
attorney, plus scheduling and preparing for additional DRB hearings. The first violation
resulted from a homeowner’s estate completing flood repairs without obtaining the
necessary permits prior to renovating and a Flood Plain Manager review, plus committing
an environmental violation by moving debris and silt washed in by the flood to an
adjacent owner’s property in the Floodway. The other violation was sent to the Mill
Owner’s Association for failure to obtain the proper permits prior to renovations.
Normally, some renovations were allowed to commence for businesses prior to obtaining
a permit, as long as the proper FEMA guidelines were followed, and a permit was
submitted as soon as possible. However, owners of the commercial units below the Base
Flood Elevation had not applied for permitting and were witnessed as using no-compliant
building materials prior to submitting an application for the Flood Plain Manager’s
review. Following the Violation letter, the Association as been working towards meeting
all compliance regulations through DRB hearings and a proposed Memorandum of
Understanding. Both Violations are still active and unresolved as of the end of February
2024,

As usual, more and more time is spent acting as a print shop for the DRB and Planning
Commission. With regard to the DRB, perhaps with the more streamlined application
process, less time will be required. Another factor that has increased the amount of time
involved printing documents, is due to the applicant’s scope of their projects, i.e. Shaw’s
and The Mill in particular. It is anticipated that the amount of time allocated to printing
documentation for the DRB will wane with the closing of those aforementioned hearings,
and being more adamant about telling the applicants to supply in septuplet any
additional documentation requested by the DRB. As far as the Planning Commission is
concerned, the biggest hurdle has been the Municipal Planning Grant, coupled with twice
as many meetings over the past two months, resulting in additional time spent printing
agendas, posting them at the various required locations, and making sure all of the board
members receive a copy, whether printed or via email.

2



Above all these and other general Planning and Zoning duties, there are general inquiries
and assistance for the public via phone calls, emails, and visits to the office. This aspect of
the department’s duties consumes several hours per day with discussions and education
of regulations prior to any applications submitted, or tangible work getting done. As it
stands now, more tasks and work is increasing faster than can be processed. So, as the
workload increases, the ability to close the office door to the public one day per week
would greatly improve the department’s efficiency and productivity. Currently, there are
several DRB Notice of Decisions that must be written up and delivered within specified
time frames as required by law, as well as other items of significant importance relating
to public safety.

ﬂ( p{ prdamsg chz,}aime - Aaa) ALy



Municipal Offic
Ph._802-228-44
Fax 802-228-55
police@ludlow.

Jeffrey P. Billings

Chief of Police

PO.Box B

Ludlow, VT 05149-0250

Ludlow, Vermont .
A Better Place To Live, Work & Play,

-

TO: Board of Selectmen
From: Chief Billings

ACTIVITY LOG
FEBRUARY 2024

INVESTIGATIONS:

Dead Body

Drug Overdose
Untimely

Sexual Assault

Fatal Accidents
Fights

Child Abuse
Burglaries

Larcenies

vandalism :
Domestics

Accidents

Animal Complaints
Disorderly Conduct
Harassment
Drunkenness
Possession Stolen Property
Attempted Larceny
Juvenile Complaints
Trespassing

ITlegal Dumping
Found Missing Person
Threats

Stolen vehicle
ARRESTS/CITATIONS:
DWI ’

Voyeurism

Domestic Abuse
Unlawful Mischief
Disorderly Conduct
Simple Assault
Simple Assault Police officer
Violation Release Conditions
Arrest on warrant

Larceny .
DLS Any Seas@n Is The Right Season to Visit Ludlow

Proud Sponsor Of The Dare Program

=

OCCOOCCOOCOON OOO0COONOOOOCORMRRLRRWOOOOONOO



MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS:
TICKETS ISSUED FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

No Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
village Ordnance
Parkin? violations
Alcoho

Cell phone
Marijuana

VERBAL WARNINGS FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

No Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
DWI

Parking violations
Cell phone

HEFHERONOOOROOOR~NID

ONON
~

COONOOO
o



MISC. COMPLAINTS:

Noise

Suspicious Circumstance
False Alarms

Assist VSP

Assist Courts

Assist DMV

Assist Ludlow Agency
Assist Other Agency
Business/House Checks
Motorist Assist

MV Disturbances

Civil Matters

General Services
Trash violation

RORRERN
= 1IN

OEOO-P\IOKO

The Ludlow Police Department provided 3100 miles of routine patrol.

Foot patrol accounted for 4 hours.

Respectfully Submitted;
7 7

577 5D

ffrey pP. Billings

Chief of police




To:  Select Board Members
From: UllaP. Cook, Clerk/Treasurer
Subject:  February
Date: February 28, 2024

The following is a breakdown of the activity in the Town Clerk and Treasurers
office for the month of February:

Bank Statements for both Town and Village.

Finished recording in book 468 and working on 469. We now have 397 books or
238,200 pages scanned and linked. This means we now have over 40 years in the
computer. We are encouraging the title searchers to use the computer versus the
card file. We also now have all the land record books available on line from the
home page for Town of Ludlow. Pam is still scanning our property transfer tax
returns and has from 1968 to present in the computer. Pam is now working on
putting the Lien Books and scanning into the NEMRC System.

Collected third quarter property taxes in the amount of $6,649,893. We have
$45,255 due on the first quarter, $73,375 on the second and $615,911 on the third.
We mailed you forgot to pay your taxes letters to 386 property owners.

Received 137 documents for recording during February which includes warranty
deeds, quit claim deeds, mortgages, mortgage discharges, bianchi, certificate of
occupancy, liens and miscellaneous permits. Also included in the documents for
recording are 29 property transfers totaling $13,564,500. Getting a little more

activity in real estate.



02/28/24 Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 1 of 2

02:52 pm Current Yr Pd: 8 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund
Account Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget
GENERAL 29,062,955.23 28,528,520.98 98.16%
ADMINISTRATION 183,340.00 105,026.35 57.29%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 16,700.00 6,291.00 37.67%
CEMETERY 40,925,00 12,635.00 30.87%
TOWN CLERK 95,870.00 40,249.10 41.98%
TOWN TREASURER 114,000.00 112,814.26 98.96%
INTEREST/DIVIDEND 42,691.00 71,239.61 166.87%
FIRE 3,000.00 2,700.00 90.00%
COMMUNITY CENTER 2,500.00 1,349.00 53.96%
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT 0.00 0.00 0.00%
High School Building 7,500.00 3,500.00 46.67%
HIGHWAY 146,250.00 111,953.32 76.55%
INSURANCE 10,939.00 5,838.55 53.37%
LISTERS 3,500.00 0.00 0.00%
PLANNING 26,800.00 31,699.66 118.28%
POLICE 56,899.00 15,538.06 27.31%
RECREATION 15,600.00 18,144.75 116.31%
FLOOD 0.00 1,999,500.00 100.00%
SOLID WASTE 187,750.00 105,445.11 56.16%
CAPITAL 469,100.00 47,985.56 10.23%
Total Revenues 30,486,319.23 31,220,430.31 102.41%
ADMINISTRATION 304,434.00 247,597.92 81.33%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 207,570.00 186,227.67 89.72%
TOWN CLERK/TREASURER 247,505.00 162,027.31 65.46%
COMMUNITY CENTER OP 93,625.00 93,862.38 100.25%
PLANNING SERVICES 188,077.00 138,686.12 73.74%
LISTERS 78,435.00 45,644.81 58.19%
POLICE DEPARTMENT 1,228,280.00 850,166.23 69.22%
FIRE DEPARTMENT 167,970.00 78,273.92 46.60%
MUN. TRANSIT SYS 0.00 0.00 0.00%
HIGH SCHOOL BUILDING 95,161.00 56,428.89 59.30%
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 1,128,910.00 696,197.61 61.67%
SOLID WASTE 270,800.00 229,457.77 84.73%
DISPOSAL 168,350.00 152,660.84 90.68%
CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 125,697.00 100,100.73 79.64%
RECREATION DEPARTMENT 194,300.00 151,727.47 78.09%
FLOOD 0.00 2,975,969.14 100.00%
INTER GOVERNMENTAL 163,000.00 163,737.63 100.45%
APPROPRIATIONS 173,587.00 88,883.28 51.20%
INSURANCE 202,769.00 157,110.50 77.48%
VOTED ARTICLES 491,835.00 231,042.50 46.98%
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS 23,607,866.87 11,896,653.00 50.39%
DEBT MANAGEMENT 354,609.00 274,065.12 77.29%
CAPITAL 439,600.00 514,478.98 117.03%
Total Expenditures 29,932,380.87 19,490,999.82 65.12%
Total General Fund 553,938.36 11,729,430.49



02/28/24
02:52 pm

Account

Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 2 of 2

Current Yr Pd: 8 - Budget Status Report
General Fund

Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget

UCook

Total All Funds



LUDLOW TRANSFER STATION
FEBRUARY 2024 REPORT

The following containers were hauled out this month:

# Containers Container Size Content
4 40-yard MSW
3 40-yard C&D
1 30-yard Glass
2 30-yard Metal
1 40-yard Z Sort Recyclables
1 30-vard Cardboard Bales

1955 1bs. lbs. Compost

0 30-yard Tires

Covered Pallets = 1; Covered Gaylords = 3; Non-
Covered Pallet = 1; Non-Covered Gaylords =2
Broken Covered Gaylord = 0/Non-Covered Gaylord

E-Waste — FEMA (Non-Covered Pallets- 2
andNon-Covered Gaylords-2)

0 Boxes Lightbulbs
0 units Freon
0 units/0 Extinguishers Propane Tanks/Fire Extinguishers
0 Buckets Ballasts
3 Boxes Batteries (Alkaline & Haz)

15 gallons/5 gallons

Cooking Oil &Waste Oil

We would like to thank the Highway Dept., in addition to crushing and packing off our containers and always
being available to assist us, they were also able to get chipper operating again so we could clean up the Christmas

Trees.

Tractor maintenance has been completed. We continue to monitor the high winds, but were fortunate to not have

much winter shoveling this month.

A special thank you to the residents of our Town, who continue to bring our staff baked goods weekly. It is a very
nice and appreciated gesture.

Until next month,

Pk P,

Pattie Potter
Transfer Station Manager




8.

9.

Town of Ludlow
Department Head Reports

March 2024

. Ambulance — Stephanie Grover
. Building & Grounds — Kevin MacPherson

. Fire Department — Chief Peter Kolenda (Available at meeting)

Highway — Ron Tarbell

. Listers — Jeannie Stasz
. Parks & Recreation — Nick Miele

. Planning/Zoning — Rosemary Goings

Police — Chief Jeffrey Billings

Town Clerk/Treasurer — Ulla Cook

10.Transfer Station — Pattie Potter (Available at meeting)



AA/\ COMMUNITY AMBULANCE SERVICE, Po.BOX359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-2841 FAX (802) 228-2813

Ludlow Ambulance Service
March 1. 2024 - March 27, 2024

‘Total Calls
March 2024: 63 Calls March 2023- 83 Calls
Ambulance Calls March 2024
* Ludlow 44
* Cavendish
e Proctorsville
¢ Plymouth
¢ Mount Holly
e Chester
e Shrewsbury 1
¢ Andover
¢ Reading
*«  Weston
* Londonderry
* Springfield Hospital/ Springfield
*  Rutland Hospital
*  Mount Ascutney Hospital
*  Mutual Aid received

Transport

Springfield Hospital 41
Dartmouth 1
Landing Zone

Mount Ascutney

Rutland Hospital 5
No Transports/Stand by Coverage 16
Gill Home

Cheshire Medical Center

Home

Valley Regional Hospital

AN B

—1) Buckle Up For Safety @ —




_ JJ1/\ COMMUNITY AMBULANCE SERVICE, Po.BOX 359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-2841 FAX (802) 228-2813

LAS Updates:

Taught an all-day CPR hands only event at Okemo Mountain School for the students.
Participated with Mount Holly Fire Department in an off-road drill.
Communicated and discussed with the Medical Director on transport options and formalized a letter with
the medical director regarding that situation to area towns.
Met with Okemo Ski Patrol to discuss season operations, areas of improvement and developing a plan to
teach hands only CPR to employees for the upcoming summer season and next winter.
Continued meetings for the Regional Technical rescue team. Established the team as a business with the
secretary of state and established an EIN number. We are working on non profit status with the IRS. We
also hosted a meeting with area selectboard members and town managers to tell them our intentions and
look for support. The following week we hosted another meeting for department members to see how
much interest we have within area departments.
Met with the Divided Sky Foundation. Had a tour of the facility and spoke about their operations. Also
discussed having more public access Narcan throughout the area and plan on meeting again to get this
going.
Begin the planning stages of a Kids Fair/Safety Day. We are planning to do it Saturday June 15 at the
Ludlow Community Center Complex. More to come.

Stephanie Grover

EMS Chief

Ludlow Ambulance Service

—1) Buckle Up For Safety @—



LUDLOW BUILDING & GROUNDS
Monthly Report

MARCH 2024

The following was performed the following work during the Month of March:

Respectfully submitted,

General maintenance and cleaning of the Town Hall, Dorsey Park, Public Safety
Building, Community Center and all parks

Fire extinguisher checks

Plowing, shoveling and salting of Town & Village properties during the month
Performed Cemetery checks

Set up and cleaned for Auditorium for Town Meeting and Village Meeting and other
events

Replaced all emergency lights that were needed at all buildings

Weekly checks at high school on boilers and other issues and repairs

Met with Vtel on running new lines at school and Sr. center

Started some lawn repairs til storm came

Painting and repairs being done at community center

Shoveling roofs and drains from storm

Ketin MacPherson
Building & Grounds Foreman



LUDLOW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

Monthly Report - February/March
2024

e Winter Highway Maintenance

e Transfer Station

o Crushed & Load Dumpsters

= Demo
= cardboard

o Turning compost
e Equipment Maintenance

o Police Cruiser Maintenance

o Ambulance Maintenance

o Maintenance on highway trucks/ equipment
e Trees & Brush

o Ongoing Clean-up from Storm Damage

o Cut/Chip Brush Trailside-Old Weston mtn. Rds, Edelweiss Rd.
e Other/Miscellaneous

o FEMA documentation
New 2024 Backhoe was delivered
Winging snow back/Pushback Intersections, turn arounds
Cold patching Ongoing
Open Culverts/Drains ditches
Haul Winter sand
Weight limit signs- Installed
Open Culverts
Work on repairing Roads(Spring)
Haul Sur-pac (Spring Rds.)

000000 O0O0O0

Respectively submitted,

Ronald Tarbell
Highway Foreman



TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF LISTERS AND ASSESSOR
P.0.BOX 359
LUDLOW, VT. 05149
PHONE 802-228-7206
listers@ludlow.vt.us

LISTERS AND ASSESSOR’S OFFICE
MARCH 2024 MONTLY REPORT

There has been several more requests from the property owners of the Mill for
property tax abatement due to the flooding in July. The date for the tax
abatement meeting has not been scheduled, will take place sometime in April.

Permit inspections have been completed.

Jeanne Stasz has been re-elected for another 3 years, Douglas Sheehan has

requested to be appointed by the Selectman for Lister, giving our office 2 listers
and an assessor.

Respectfully,

Qf pAAL ﬁ 2:2
P
M.udlow Listers & or’s Office



Directors Report
March 27, 2024

Ludlow Youth Baseball and Softball: The registration process opened in the beginning of
March, and we have a total of 63 athletes registered. I anticipate more sign ups coming in as we
start to approach Easter. These early registrations are allowing us to begin to fill out teams
allowed us to field teams for age groups and now we are working to figure out if we will have
one team or two. The last snowstorm put a damper on outdoor practices, however the older teams
will be starting indoors on Monday. I am planning to have opening day on May 6™ with the
normal festivities to begin the season.

Adult Activates: The adult programs have been popular throughout the month of March. The
indoor soccer program has averaged 10, while the adult volleyball program has averaged around
13. The program that has seen the highest number of participants is pickleball which usually has
8 players that play Monday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 1 to 3 pm.

Annual Easter Egg Hunt: The Annual Easter Egg Hunt is early this year as we are hosting this
annual event at the community center on Saturday, April 6th. This year we continue to keep the
older and younger kids in different areas to give everyone the opportunity to find Easter eggs.
We will also be running some small mini games as well as multiple guessing jars. The festivities
will start at 10 am and the guessing jar winners will be announced at 11:30 am. This year we
have over 1200 eggs with various amounts of candy, and special prizes that can be claimed at the
Ludlow Community Center.

Green Up Day: This year the statewide Green Up Day is May 4™ which cannot arrive fast
enough. There is plenty of roadside trash on every road and this year Green Up Vermont is has a
challenge to clean Vermont from top to bottom. This year the event will kick off around 9 am at
the Ludlow Community Center and volunteers will get light breakfast items and a t-shirt to show
our appreciation for cleaning up the Town and Village of Ludlow. We are certainly still planning
our event but are working with local businesses to continue to spread the word. If anyone would
like to participate in the Guinness Book of World Records challenge, they should contact Green
Up Vermont directly since they are coordinating all the volunteers across the state.

Summer Concert Series: The summer concert series is in the planning process, but we should
have shows starting in late June and running to mid-August at Veteran’s Memorial Park from
6:30 to 8 pm on Sunday nights. We are working to promote the series more to boost the
attendance.

Thanks,

Nick Miele, Director of Parks and Recreation




Monthly Report for March 2024
from the Planning/Zoning Department

Zoning Applications — 4 Complete; 6 Incomplete/Pending
Bianchi - 2

Subdivision - 1

DRB - 2 Complete, and 7 Incomplete Applications
Certificate of Occupancy - 3 New; 1 Pending

Site inspections - 9

New 911 Addresses - 3

Violations - 1 new; 2 Active

- Zoning applications consisted of 3 single family homes; and 1 home addition. There are
another 7 pending applications, waiting for completion. The incomplete applicants have
either not paid, not submitted complete plans, or not provided waste water permits, etc.

- Bianchi’s requested were for a 12x20 shed, and 2 at one single family home for a
kitchen enlargement, and new deck.

- Subdivision applications were to split a lot on Flatow Road to build a single family home,
and also include a lot line adjustment from the same parcel.

-DRB Application process has changed to collect ALL required information prior to
scheduling a hearing. The 2 complete applications are 1) to move the Stargazer Carpet
from Jackson Gore to the Clocktower Base Lodge, behind Okemo Mountain Lodge
Building C; and 2) for the aforementioned Subdivision. There are 7 applications still
pending, and remain incomplete as of the end of March. This method of collecting all
data prior to scheduling an applicant on the DRB agenda is working favorably for the DRB.

- Site visits for a Certificate of Occupancy: exterior spiral stair case; new 12x20 shed
setback verification; setback verifications for 2 future new home construction; new deck
plus kitchen expansion; private road lot with cul-de-sac to discuss future events
concerning possible development on adjacent lot; 3 final inspections for completed new
homes.

One final inspection revealed an additional bedroom that was not included on the
building plans, which sparked some controversy regarding the process of obtaining a
Certificate of Occupancy. Normally, fees for a Certificate of Occupancy are collected
along with the building application fees, and a note is included with the building permit
that a Certificate of Occupancy is required upon project completion. However, there has
been no time limit for an applicant to seek the Certificate of Occupancy once the project
is completed. With reference to the aforementioned final inspection, the Certificate of
Occupancy was requested more than 10 years after the completion of the project when
the house was placed on the market. It was reasonably presumed that the additional
bedroom was in use for that period of time, but there had not been an appropriate sewer

1



allocation. Most often a Certificate of Occupancy is not sought after until a transfer of
ownership, but this can hold up a sale if it is denied or there are any discrepancies. The
key takeaway is that a new rule should be put in place to ensure that a Certificate of
Occupancy is addressed within the two-year permitted construction window

- New 911 addresses were reviewed with the VT GIS Specialist to confirm changes, adds,
and removals as necessary. Two new addresses were created and one that was created
in 2008 was “renewed” and treated as new: these letters of notification were sent to the
proper recipients.



Jeffrey P. Billings

Chief of Police
PO.Box B

Ludlow, VT 05149-0250

Ludlow, Vermont
A Better Place To Live, Work & Play

TO: Board of Selectmen
From: Chief Billings

ACTIVITY LOG

INVESTIGATIONS:
Dead Body

Drug Overdose
Untimely

Sexual Assault
Fatal Accidents
Fights

Child Abuse
Burglaries
Larcenies
vandalism
Domestics
Accidents

Animal Complaints
Disorderly Conduct
Harassment
Drunkenness
Possession Stolen Property
Attempted Larceny
Juvenile Complaints
Trespassing
I1legal Dumping
Found Missing Person
Threats

Stolen vehicle
ARRESTS/CITATIONS:
DWI :

voyeurism

Domestic Abuse
Unlawful Mischief
Disorderly Conduct
Simple Assault

Simple Assault Police Officer
violation Release Conditions

Arrest on warrant
Larceny

BLS Any Seasdh Is The Right Season to Visit Ludlo_n‘;
Proud Sponsor Of The Dare Program

MARCH 2024

COO0OODOOOO0 OOCOOOCOOOOONNOCWOOOOOOOO

Municipal Offic:
Ph..802-228-44]
Fax 802-228-55¢
police@ludlow.



MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS:
TICKETS ISSUED FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

NO Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
Village Ordnance
Parkin? violations
Alcoho

Cell phone
Marijuana

VERBAL WARNINGS FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

NO Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
DWI

Parking violations
Cell pPhone

OCOOROROOOODWOWW

00O

HOONOOOOND

N



MISC. COMPLAINTS:

Noise

suspicious Circumstance
False Alarms

Assist VSP

Assist Courts

Assist DMV

Assist Ludlow Agency
Assist Other Agency
Business/House Checks
Motorist Assist

MV Disturbances

Civil matters

General Services
Trash violation

ORRFRwOUN
w

O@ON-&EBOOOO

The Ludlow Police Department provided 2600 miles of routine patrol.

Foot patrol accounted for 6 hours.

Respectfully Submittgd;

Joffrey P. Billings
ief of Police



To:  Select Board Members
From: UllaP. Cook, Clerk/Treasurer
Subject: March
Date: March 26, 2024

The following is a breakdown of the activity in the Town Clerk and Treasurers
office for the month of March:

Bank Statements for both Town and Village.

Finished recording in book 469. We now have 398 books or 238,800 pages
scanned and linked. This means we now have over 40 years in the computer. We
are encouraging the title searchers to use the computer versus the card file. We
also now have all the land record books available on line from the home page for
Town of Ludlow. Pam is still scanning our property transfer tax returns and has
from 1968 to present in the computer. Pam is now working on putting the Lien
Books and scanning into the NEMRC System.

Sent letters to 170 property owners reminding them of taxes due. We have
$40,309 due on the first quarter, $59,560 on the second and $344,542 on the third.

Received 128 documents for recording during February which includes warranty
deeds, quit claim deeds, mortgages, mortgage discharges, bianchi, certificate of
occupancy, liens and miscellaneous permits. Also included in the documents for
recording are 25 property transfers totaling $13,430,367. Sales are still coming in
at sales prices exceeding the assessment values.

g



03/26/24 Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 1 of 2

02:37 pm Current Yr Pd: 9 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund
Account Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget
GENERAL 29,062,955.23 28,528,520.98 98.16%
ADMINISTRATION 183,340.00 119,683.09 65.28%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 16,700.00 7,.266.00 43.51%
CEMETERY 40,925.00 13,020.00 31.81%
TOWN CLERK 95,870.00 46,849.10 48.87%
TOWN TREASURER 114,000.00 118,134.28 103.63%
INTEREST/DIVIDEND 42,691.00 85,305.19 199.82%
FIRE 3,000.00 2,900.00 96.67%
COMMUNITY CENTER 2,500.00 1,544.00 61.76%
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT 0.00 0.00 0.00%
High School Building 7,500.00 4,500.00 60.00%
HIGHWAY 146,250.00 112,098.32 76.65%
INSURANCE 10,939.00 6,941.55 63.46%
LISTERS 3,500.00 3,607.00 103.06%
PLANNING 26,800.00 35,784.06 133.52%
POLICE 56,899.00 15,975.06 28.08%
RECREATION 15,600.00 20,354.75 130.48%
FLOOD 0.00 1,999,500.00 100.00%
SOLID WASTE 187,750.00 110,902.20 59.07%
CAPITAL 469,100.00 47,946.00 10.22%
Total Revenues 30,486,319.23 31,280,831.58 102.61%
ADMINISTRATION 304,434.00 290,924.07 95.56%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 207,570.00 209,952,44 101.15%
TOWN CLERK/TREASURER 247,505.00 185,860.53 75.09%
COMMUNITY CENTER OP 93,625.00 102,811.17 109.81%
PLANNING SERVICES 188,077.00 154,610.31 82.21%
LISTERS 78,435.00 50,992.91 65.01%
POLICE DEPARTMENT 1,228,280.00 946,963.70 77.10%
FIRE DEPARTMENT 167,970.00 92,535.00 55.09%
MUN. TRANSIT SYS 0.00 0.00 0.00%
HIGH SCHOOL BUILDING 95,161.00 68,384.41 71.86%
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 1,128,910.00 789,451.89 69.93%
SOLID WASTE 270,800.00 247,298.74 91.32%
DISPOSAL 168,350.00 163,100.77 96.88%
CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 125,697.00 103,971.01 82.72%
RECREATION DEPARTMENT 194,300.00 162,356.20 83.56%
FLOOD 0.00 2,988,104.39 100.00%
INTER GOVERNMENTAL 163,000.00 163,737.63 100.45%
APPROPRIATIONS 173,587.00 92,777.36 53.45%
INSURANCE 202,769.00 214,510.00 105.79%
VOTED ARTICLES 491,835.00 309,063.75 62.84%
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS 23,607,866.87 12,596,653.00 53.36%
DEBT MANAGEMENT 354,609.00 274,065.12 77.29%
CAPITAL 439,600.00 514,747.28 117.09%
Total Expenditures 29,932,380.87 20,722,871.68 69,23%
Total General Fund 553,938.36 10,557,959.9%0



03/26/24
02:37 pm

Account

Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 2 of 2

Current Yr Pd: 9 - Budget Status Report
General Fund

Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget

UCook

Total All Funds



